# DYNAMIC RESPONSE ANALYSIS OF TRANSMISSION TOWERS AFTER CONDUCTOR BREAKAGE USING ADINA



# DYNAMIC RESPONSE ANALYSIS OF TRANSMISSION TOWERS AFTER

### CONDUCTOR BREAKAGE USING ADINA

© Joseph I. Dunford, P.Eng. A thesis submitted to the School of Graduate Studies

in partial fulfillment of the

requirements for the degree of

Master of Engineering

# Faculty of Engineering

Memorial University of Newfoundland

April, 2011

St. John's,

Newfoundland and Labrador







### ABSTRACT

The objective of this research was to (i) assess the peak dynamic and static residual loads on various types of transmission line structures due to conductor requires. (ii) study levels of antexnal fluctuation of namics impact and static residual conductor loads and (iii) carry out a sensitivity study of various line parameters such as conductor tension, ice load, insulator length and termin types on the peak dynamic and static residual loads.

To accomplish these objectives, the following tasks were carried out:

- A number of numerical models of a 30 span transmission line were developed and analyzed using the ADDNA finite element software package. The initial results were validated by comparing with the full scale test data.
- Four structure types were considered in the detailed analyses. These were (1) self-supported steel lattice tower with different lag extensions, (2) gravel-V steel lattice tower, (7) holdmar teach pole structures and (4) Hframe wood pole structure. The effect of the structures' flexibility on peak dynamic and static residual conductor tensions was studied, after a conductor mputer.
- A semisivity analysis study was: conducted to study the effects of various line design parameters such as initial conductate tension, conductor loading (bere conductor, versus loads date to half an inch and one inch rafial ice thicknesses). junulator length and terrain types (e.g. level, hilly and valley terrains). The results from this study are presented in terms of their effect on intexet factors.

The results obtained from the numerical simulation study indicate that the structural flexibility and the spunitosulator and the spun /sage ratios have considerable effects on the residual conductor tension (hence on the insulator force). However, the peak dynamic tensions are affected not only by the structural flexibility bat also by the cross arm mass and the shape of the structures

ii

used for line modeling. For stiff structures, ones are man has very little effect on the peak conduct runnis. For transmission line modeled with right structures, the impact factures are not sensitive to the stiffness values, where an if the modeled with fields structures, the workland trait do appead staffices to a structure and appead parties. The effect of insultanting lengths has more effect on straidal and the peak impact facture. The specific traits hyper dark were considered in this study had only minimum effects on the immediates.

KEY WORDS: Broken conductor analysis, Impact factor, Residual ratio, Flexibility correction factor, Residual tension, Peak dynamic force,

### ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The author of this work would like to gratefully acknowledge the following people for their contributions to this project:

My supervisor, Dr. Katna Munaswamy, for his guidance, encouragement, editing assistance, constructive critician and windom during the pursuit of my Master of Engineering degree, and most importantly for keeping me on track during the course of the research;

Dr. Asim Haldar for editing assistance and guidance throughout the project.

My parents and sister for their support throughout the duration of this work and throughout my life;

My wife Heather and two sons Isaac and Owen for their encouragement, patience, support and most importantly understanding to the end.

in a

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

## Contents

ABST	RACT	ii		
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS				
LIST OF SYMBOLS				
1.0	INTRODUCTION	11		
1.1	Scope	17		
1.1.1	Objective of the Project and Scope	. 19		
1.2	Thesis Organization	20		
2.0	LITERATURE REVIEW	22		
2.1	Significant Research Work Prior to 1980	22		
2.2	Significant Work From 1980 - 1989	26		
2.3	Significant Work From 1990 - Present	28		
2.4	Summary of Previous Work	31		
3.0	VALIDATION OF MATHEMATICAL MODEL USING ADINA.			
3.1	Modeling in ADINA			
3.2	Static Test Results (Tower only)			
3.3	Natural Frequencies and Mode Shapes of the Tower			
3.4	Natural Frequencies and Mode Shapes of the Test Line	42		
3.5	Broken Conductor Tests Sequence	_48		
36	Methodology-Static and Dynamic Analyses	_49		
3.6.1	Initial Static Analysis	_49		
3.6.2	Dozoni: Analysis and Simulation of Conductor Break	_ 50		
36.8	Sinculation of Los L and on the Conductors			
3.6.4	Static Analysis to Estimate Residual Static Load	_51		
3.7	Broken Conductor Analysis (EPRI Wisconsin tests)	.52		
3.8	Conclusion			
4.0	MODELING	.58		
4.1	Structure Modeling			
4.1.1	Self-capported Steel Lattice Tasser			
4.1.2	Gayed-V Steel Lattice Tower	62		
4.1.3	Pseudo-elements	65		
4.1.4	H-feare Wood Pole Structure	66		
4.1.5	Steel Tuebalar Pale Structure	68		
4.2	Transmission Line Modeling			
5.0	FREE VIBRATION ANALYSIS AND DAMPING	76		
5.1	Free Vibration Analysis of Towers	76		
5.2	Eres Vibration Analysis of Transmission Line	.83		

5.3	Damping Matrix	84
6.0	STATIC AND DYNAMIC ANALYSIS	86
6.1	The Effect of Structural Flexibility on Residual Conductor	
	Tension	86
6.2	The Effect of Structural Flexibility on Dynamic Peak Conductor	
	Tension	93
6.2.1	Simulative Results for Group 1	
6.2.2	Simulation Results for Group 2	
6.2.3	3 The Effect of the H-frame Cross Arre Mass on Dynamic Peak Conductor Tension 9	
6.3	Impact Factors	100
6.4	Conclusions	107
7.0	SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS	108
8.0	SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS	127
9.0	RECOMMENDATIONS FOR FUTURE WORK	130
Refer	ences	_132
Biblic	or aphy	_136

# LIST OF TABLES

Table 3.1 Analytical Static Test Results	40
Table 3.2 Tower Natural Frequencies	
Table 3.3 Natural frequencies of the test transmission line	
Table 3.4 Broken conductor tests - Force exerted on Tower T3 Comparison	
Table 4.1 Structural Data for the components of H-frame wood pole structure	
Table 4.2. Configuration for transmission line models for any terrain	72
Table 5.1 Natural frequencies for basic self-supported steel lattice tower	
Table 5.2 Natural frequencies for self-supported steel lattice tower with 3048	
mm leg extension	
Table 5.3 Natural frequencies for self-supported lattice tower with 9144 mm	
leg extension	
Table 5.4 Natural frequencies for guyed V steel lattice tower with 10.67 m	
(35 Foot Extension)	80
Table 5.5 Natural frequencies for steel tubular pole structure	
Table 5.6 Natural frequencies for H-frame wood pole structure	82
Table 5.7. Input data for transmission line models for a given terrain	
Table 5.8 Transmission line frequencies	
Table 5.9 Rayleigh damping constant @ for supporting structures	85
Table 5.10 - Summary of conductor damping coefficients	
Table 6.1 Stiffness and flexibility values for support structures	
Table 6.2 Comparison of flexibility values -between the structures used in	
this study and the values suggested in the EPRI report	
Table 6.3 Flexibility correction factors	
Table 6.4 Peak and residual conductor tensions for Group 1 (span/sag =32)	
Table 6.5 Peak and residual conductor tensions for Group 2 (span/sag =65)	
Table 6.6 The Effect of cross arm mass on peak conductor tension	- 100
Table 6.7 Characteristics of transmission line models	- 102
Table 7.1 Simulation test matrix for a typical line with a particular	
supporting structure for a particular conductor condition	_ 108
Table 7.2 Average impact factors for line models with stiff structures (Span	
Length 428.m)	- 125
Table 7.3 Average impact factors for line models with flexible structures	
(Span Length 214m)	_126

Page

# LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS

Figure 1.1 Self Supported Towers	12
Figure 1.2 Guyed Tower	12
Figure 1.3 Severe Ice Loading on Conductors during the 1998 Ice Storm	13
Figure 1.4 Fallen H-frame during the Bonarista-Trinity Ice Storm of 2010	
Figure 1.5 Ice Loaded Wooden Pole line during the Bonavista-Trinity Ice Storm	
of 2010	
Figure 1.6 Failed Transmission Towers of 1998 Ontario-Ouebec Ice Storm	16
Figure 1.7 Dead end tower	
Figure 3.1 EPRI Wisconsin test line [5]	
Figure 3.2 EPRI Typical tangent tower [5]	
Figure 3.3 First Bending Mode (4.5308 Hz)	42
Figure 3.4 Second Bending Mode (4.6273 Hz)	
Figure 3.5 EPRI Wisconsin test line model close up view between two towers	45
Figure 3.6 Magnified view of the model	46
Figure 3.7 Vertical displacement mode shapes of complete test line	
Figure 3.8 Insulator swinging direction after the conductor rupture	52
Figure 3.9 Variation of Load for Residual Analysis	52
Figure 3.10 Insulator Tension Time History for the Test Case IIIR1	
Figure 3.11 Insulator Tension Time History for the Test Case IIIL1	
Figure 3.12 Insulator Tension Time History for the Test Case IIII.2	
Figure 4.1 Basic tower components	60
Figure 4.2 Various components of self-supported steel lattice tower	61
Figure 4.3 Self-supported steel lattice tower's leg extensions	61
Figure 4.4 Fully configured self-supported steel lattice tower	62
Figure 4.5 Basic guyed-V steel lattice tower	64
Figure 4.6 Various components of the guyed-V steel lattice tower	64
Figure 4.7 Fully configured guyed-V steel lattice towers	65
Figure 4.8 H-frame wood pole structure	67
Figure 4.9 Steel tubular pole structure	69
Figure 4.10 Cross section details of the arm	
Figure 4.11 Level terrain	73
Figure 4.12 Hilly terrain	
Figure 4.13 Valley terrain	13
Figure 4.14 Section of the line with guyed-V steel lattice tower	74
Figure 4.15 Section of the line with steel tubular pole structure	/4
Figure 4.16 Section of the line with H-frame wood pole structure	- /3
Figure 5.1Longitudinal bending mode of basic self-supported steel lattice tower	
Figure 5.2 Longitudinal bending mode for self-supported steel lattice tower with	70
3048 mm log extension	
Figure 5.3 Longitudinal bending mode for self-supported steel lattice tower with	70
9144 mm kg extension	- 19
Figure 5.4 Longitudina denoing mode sof goyed V stort affice tower with 10.07	80
HER C. S. C. LEWIS C. LEWIS CO. L.	

Figure 5.5 Longitudinal bending mode for steel tubular pole structure	
Figure 5.6 Longitudinal bending mode for H-frame wood pole structure	
Figure 6.1 Correction factor versus structural flexibility values (Ref [13],	
modified)	
Figure 6.2 Line configuration showing the location of conductor rupture	
Figure 6.3 Flexibility correction factors (modified after [13])	
Figure 6.4 Time history of conductor tension (Self-supported steel lattice tower	
with 3048mm leg extensions)	
Figure 6.5 Time history of conductor tension (Self-supported steel lattice tower	
with 9144 mm leg extensions)	
Figure 6.6 Time history of conductor tension (Guyed-V steel lattice tower)	
Figure 6.7 Time history of conductor tension (Basic self-supported steel lattice	
tower)	
Figure 6.8 Time history of conductor tension (Steel tubular pole structure)	
Figure 6.9 Time history of conductor tension (H-frame wood pole structure)	
Figure 7.1 Variation IFI vs. k' (Insulator length 2.12m; Span 428m)	
Figure 7.2 Variation IFI vs. k' (Insulator length 2.12m; Span 214m)	112
Figure 7.3 Variation IFI vs. k' (Insulator length 3.1m; Span 428m)	
Figure 7.4 Variation IFI vs. k' (Insulator length 3.1m; Span 214m)	
Figure 7.5 Variation IFF vs. k' (Insulator length 2.12m; Span 428m)	115
Figure 7.6 Variation IFF vs. k' (Insulator length 2.12m; Span 214m)	116
Figure 7.7 Variation IFF vs. k' (Insulator length 3.1m; Span 428m)	
Figure 7.8 Variation IFF vs. k' (Insulator length 3.1m; Span 214m)	
Figure 7.9 Variation RR vs. k' (Insulator length 2.12m; Span 424m)	119
Figure 7.10 Variation RR vs. k'(Insulator length 2.12m; Span 214m)	120
Figure 7.11 Variation RR vs. k' (Insulator length 3.1m; Span 424m)	121
Figure 7.12 Variation RR vs. k' (Insulator length 3.1m; Span 214m)	

# LIST OF SYMBOLS

ADINA	Automatic Dynamic Incremental Nonlinear Analysis
R,	Impact ratio
R <sub>c</sub> ,RR	Residual Ratio
Re	Tension Overload Factor
IFI	Impact Factor Initial
IFF	Impact Factor Final
LLF	Longitudinal Load Factor
CFS1	Span/Insulator Correction Factor
[C]	Damping Matrix
[K]	Stiffness Matrix
[M]	Mass Matrix
$\alpha$ and $\beta$	Rayleigh damping coefficients
ξ	Dumping ratio
60	Natural frequency
RTS	Rated Tensile Strength
С	Structural flexibility correction factor
$1/k_{a}$	Structural flexibility of N <sup>th</sup> structure

### 1.0 INTRODUCTION

Overhead transmission lines are normally designed to withstand two types of leader primary loads due to ice buildap and wind, and secondary loads, that are dynamic and the less predictable loading due to component failure or ice shedding, attleseng, etc.

A large amount of static energy is stored under heavy loading. In the event of conductor reptare, hardware failure or ice sholding, the midden returns of this conductor stype mission dynamic inputs 1 shots of the supporting structures along with a high residual longitudinal boal. As a consequence of this high longitudinal impact shot, the supporting structure can fail that may lead to cauciding failures of addaest structures.

A transmission fine can be bedond down into three basic components; the support structure, conductors and abiled wires, and instantors. There are two broad composite of support structures or towers used in transmission lines; self supported lowers and gayed lowers. Self supported lowers include, sited lattice towers (Figure 1.1), dead-end lowers, steel waver, worden poles, H-frames and other structures that do not require cables or goyed wires to maintain their integrity).



Figure 1.1 Self Supported Towers

Guyed towers (Figure 1.2) require that the tower be pinned at a central point with 4 or more cables/guy wires that anchor and prevent the tower from shifting Interally.



Figure 1.2 Guved Tower

When ice buildings occurs on a support structure and its conducts, a large statiload is applied. This handing is quantifiable and predicable from biotecidmetorological and, ice building is loss gradient and the determining where is will occurs on a line and the extent of the shudding, along with a variety of other variables makes is difficult when designing a transmission line. The common announce of potential energy that is relaxed at the enset of shudding or generation of the state of the end of the shudding of the structure transmission of the state of the state of the enset of shudding of travers. The consents have the consude fullness is part and in evident in the 1998 hour clustesian departed resume clustershub in a canado of 1510 worres.

This ice storm saw over 4 million people in lower Ostatio, Quebec and New Branswick lose power. The result was 28 death (mostly due to hypothermin), 945 injuries, 130 failed transmission towers (Figure 1.3), more than 30,000 failen uithre notes and cost of over 5.4 Million dollars.



Figure 1.3 Severe Ice Loading on Conductors during the 1998 Ice Storm

A more recent and local event occurred on a section of line owned by Newfordinal Hydro during the winter of 2010. This system or string was comprised minity of woodra paid and 11 fistem strates that wave componing when an ice atoms moved into the Homesian region and mered wavels. Firstly, the storm begues on a Fiddy evening and Januel aito the workend. The result was never 100 fidius pios and about 2000 humes without power for 4 days. Cross worked amount the citeds for 4 days before power was restored to all meres. A suppose of the servery of mansemes the work line line part of an Hymer 1.5.



Figure 1.4 Fallen H-frame during the Bonavista-Trinity Ice Storm of 2010

Figure 1.5 shows the severity of ice loading on the conductors during the Boravista storm with loading in the range of 1.5 to 2 inches radial thickness.



Figure 1.5 Ice Loaded Wooden Pole line during the Bonavista-Trinity Ice Storm

#### of 2010

There are three pointial cascade that can occer: writed, turnwree and longitudind. A vertical assault accars when a piece of hardware, seeing of the area may, or imilated in this cascars the consolutes the full vertically over a series of support structures. A turnwrene cascade can occur when there is wish that is preparadicular to the turnsmission line. If a composent touch as a go which in that causes a consolities where the conducter this preparadicular to the direction of decisical transmission or the twever can be seen to fall perpendicular to the combater wire, A longitudinat canade is when a tower falls parallel to the combater wire (see Time 16.



Figure 1.6 Failed Transmission Towers of 1998 Ontario-Quebec Ice Storm

The longitudinal cancels in the more common and none determitive of the three and as a serule more research & developments has been focused on preventing of minimizing this type of failure. Primary cances for the initial work failure can be longitudinal insthatore, unexess ine, wind or biotaxe conductors (Thomas and Poper IR). The most common method of cancean prevention contently in to instart cancede arresting towers or dead end towers. The diffusione between a dotate-out borrer (see Figure 1.7) and the minimal support instructs in the thom are regular instructions. The distribution is the structure of the distribution of this addition is that this can be could y as these towers are much more robust, and hence model that is can be could y as these towers are much more induct. [13] when dissiphing a towers. Therefore if a more complex theoret(Buss and Poper [13] when dissiphing a towers. Therefore if a more complex theoret(Buss and Poper [13] when dissiphing a towers. Therefore if a more complex theoret(Buss and Poper [13] when dissiphing a towers. Therefore if a more complex theoret(Buss and Poper [14] when dissiphing a towers. Therefore if a more complex theoret(Buss and Poper [15] when dissiphing a towers. Therefore if a more complex theoret(Buss and Poper [16] when its structure and blocks the fit comb tower its the structure is the structure and the structure is the structure and the structure is the structure and the structure is the str design to limit cascading to a few towers or none, hence reduce costs and improve

system reliability.



Figure 1.7 Dead end tower

The purpose of this research is to develop a greater understanding of the dynamic response of a transmission line immediately following a rupture, using commercially available computer simulation software.

### 1.1 Scope

Overhead lines are normally designed to withstand two types of loads; primary loads arising from direct meteorological exposures, such as ice and wind, and secondary loads, often known as the unbalanced loads due to ice shedding, or the follow of a convenent such as conducts, hardware tc. Primary loads are typically specified by a design return probed, and are usually applied as maximum (or, maximum wind), and some combination of which and lee. The design return prod is selected by balaxing the ishift capital or of rehifting the first spatian the cost of failure (atmaps) during its lifetime operation. Also, the importance of the line plays a significant rule in selecting the design return period. Radial lines are typically more efficied than prathel lines or lines within a gait as failure of a main line of the causes contradictants to the current

Due to the large amount of stored energy ander heavy backing, failure of mechanical components in the system, such as imulators or dealed hardware, and produce significantly large dynamic should atter affidical to quantify or to dealgn fir. These dynamic scondary loads, even when the primary loads are loss than the dealgn load, can for exceed the sumsare capacity and an trigger a failure event in the system. A large amount of energy released can cance catterpolic failure.

A better understanding of the dynamic hashs experienced during excends failure wood provide designers with the tools required to cost effectively and relifiely design the transmission systems and to minimize durage from single composent failure. This is especially important when considentifies in smalls for the premutare failure of a composent below the design load level, which can came a censels that could outerwise be presented or minimized with a proper design methodology. These is a storeg need to substrained a white a proper design.

#### distribution in a line.

Over the course of 20 years, work has here completed on the dynamic response of transmission line finds the Direct sectors of the sectors of analysis; full scalar, enhanced scalar generation of the sector of the sector of analysis suffure results, the sector of the sector of the sector of the sectors suffure results, the sector of simulation analysis have been limited, between it has been shown in previous work (Tacker and Hahlar [1]) that the ADNA suffware can be used to simulate conductor breaks in the transmission line to obtain comparable results be the filt scalar of adata.

#### 1.1.1 Objective of the Project and Scope

The present study uses a hypothetical 200KV steel line configuration with 30 structures. The 230 kV line contain of a single-detail behavioral configuration. Also a wood pole line as well as a steel tablar pole line is considered at this poling level ta assass the effect of structures; Hoshibly on the containerust loads. These different structure types are considered. These are (1) latticed self supported tauces with different extension lags (2) Cogod-3 tauce, (2) shall at self not-instrume and (1) and tool HoSmet structures.

The objectives of this study are:

- to assess the peak dynamic and static residual loads on these structure types due to conductor rupture
- to study the effect of flexibility of supporting structure in the transmission line on maximum dynamic immact and residual conductor loads.
- to carry out a sensitivity study of various parameters such as (1) conductor tension, (2) ice load, (3) insulator string length and (4) termin on the peak dynamic and static residual loads.

To accomplish these objectives, the numerical model of the transmission line that was developed was analyzed using ADINA finite element software package and validated by comparing with the full scale experimental data.

# 1.2 Thesis Organization

Chapter 2 is a summary of work that is relevant to the current research. It describes work that has been conducted over the last century to further our understanding of the dynamic response that results from a conductor or tower fulture.

Chapter 3 explains some of the parameters that are considered when performing a simulation. This chapter involves simulations of the EPRI Wiscomin Text Line and compares the actual results with the simulated results. This was performed as a validation of the samentifores used for the current research. Chapter 4 discusses the modeling considerations when using the ADINA software and the variables, assumptions and methodology involved when modeling the various towers in a transmission line. Material properties for the various components used throughout this research are given in this chapter.

Chapter 5 investigates the free vibrations of the towers and conductors and their effect on the Rayleigh damping coefficient used in the analysis.

Chapter 6 explores the methodology involved when performing a dynamic analysis. This chapter also examines the spanwag ratio, tower structural flexibility and their affects on peak conductor tension. In addition, variable cross arm mass for the flexible wooden H-frame structure was examined for its affects on dynamic peak location that here word the three impart factors [FP, Fl and RR.

Chapter 7 presents a sensitivity analysis of tower type, insulator length, terrain type, initial conductor tension, conductor loading and provides a discussion there into.

Chapter 8 summarizes and discusses the findings of this research.

Chapter 9 identifies topics for further research.

### 2.0 LITERATURE REVIEW

The first meaninaism of electricity from a generating plant in Frankfur to Laffer, in Germany occured in 1897. The your was transmitted over at 738km line operated at a 238kV level. By 1914, first from transmission lines were in service at or above 7364 Next. Although the high voltige line doing more values structure types due to voltage differences, there are a fee commonalisies that must be considered in the doing process scheeting of an extern and stage methods and their first, analysis and doing of armenture and doublines etc. In receiver, such fees on the research has been to estimate the dynamic londs on overhead line structures cannot by a component failure. The review of literature is thesen down into three parts. Each part does these here research week are the ording a specific period.

#### 2.1 Significant Research Work Prior to 1980

After the Stood World War, a considerable research effort was directed to establish and design requirements for transmission towers. Treem 1950 to 1940 the Souri of research was not the builts considerate testing of the desourbinistication transmission lines to estimate pack dynamic and residual loads on the mappending structures. In addition, much atteristics was paid to the mathematical modeling of transmission lines the development of dynamic impact fastors.

22

Haro et al [2] conducted a series of full-scale tests where they examined the dynamic peak force acting on the supporting structure due to a conductor breakage. The sensitivity study included the effects of flexible and rigid towers. initial conductor tension insulator lengths and the various cross sectional areas of conductor on the dynamic and static residual loads. They observed that immediately after the conductor rupture, the force in the conductor decreased up to a value of 95% of the initial tension. This reduction was followed by a sharp increase in the conductor tension. The elapsed time from the initiation of the numbure to the time where the tension again began to rise was termed as the "slack" time. It was also observed that this "slack" time was directly proportional to the length of the insulator. The peak dynamic force increases with the increase in initial conductor tension. The ratio of the peak dynamic force to the initial conductor tension decreased with the increase in initial tension. It was also observed that the peak dynamic force in the conductor decreases with the increase in insulator length. In addition, the flexible structures experienced a peak load which was two thirds of the load on the rigid structures.

Lumins; et al [1] developed a multientical model to using the effects of structural flexibility on the unbalanced loading imposed by the conductor reports. A papicial method was used to determine the unbalanced longitudinal load on the structure by adjusting the conductor trution based on an increase of determine of unstressed longith (US3), efficient on the tumins. It was posited on that the interse efficient of the basher and politic actuative will provide ecconstititioners through our the basher and politic actuative will provide ecconstitition of the tumine trutient will be politic ecconstition. design because the loads on the structure will be reduced significantly. The paper also identified the need for a computer aided analysis method as opposed to a sraphical approach to reduce the analysis time.

Govers [4] carried out a number of dynamic tests on small scale line models in the taboratory and full scale field tests on a decommissioned line. The author used three inpact factor ratios for comparison of these tests namely, Impact Ratio ( $R_{2}$ ), Residual Ratio ( $R_{2}$ ), and Tension Overload Factor ( $R_{2}$ ). These ratios are defined as follows.

R,=Residual static force

Where the dynamic transite peak impatibial face is defined as the maximum fractional basels for achieved reads the one-particle requires, the initial static face of conductor is defined as the faces in the conductor prior to the emalators reprior and the resolution static faces is defined as the faces in the conductor affect modules reads endowed basels and the requires. These resolutions affect for definition of the empirical face of the empirical faces reads for the empirical factor is defined as the faces in the empirical faces resoluted that increases in the quavitage and quarking independent of the empirical grant quark reads and a significant reduction when the intervent of high immutances. Papert et al [5] combated a action of tests involving backet combatews, shall write and humdens on a docementinioned dochet evicuti 118 KW line. The test line constant of als spans. All of the supporting annutances were self-imported ated lineits towers. It was reported that immediately findensing a combatew period of time and then showed as ateady increase until the first peak force in the immediate strange uses realized. Following the site, the first peak force in the immediate strange uses realized. Following the site, the first peak force in the full scale tests, the anthene studg atomic to a klapter peak. From there full scale tests, the anthene scaledated two impact factors. These were: Impact Factor hindline to two suggested by Geness [4].

Linkey [6] conducted a static analysis to determine the residual boot in the conductor. In this study, the have support for the structure was modeled as using-fastice. First so this maph, the two argues was modeled as a low rigid. The author used "Southwell Relaxation Method" to solve the nonlinear system of equilibrium equations which included the effects of structure's defection and the instance was guard to exact requires required structure requires the structure requires the conductor requires

#### 2.2 Significant Work From 1980 - 1989

Most of the research work from this era identified the need for modeling the dynamic response of transmission lines and the development of algorithms that formed the basis for simulation programs.

Monce et al.[2] conducted a series of stress on small sole (150% wild) hier models with these equal spans to obtain static and dynamic data on the branchfadd infinition and instrumer responses that is broken conductors, broken shield views or ice shealing conditions. These laboratory scale models were constructed along branch data and corpore wises this had also waight to is similar the response characteristics. The effects of artiflators, insidiar length etc, on the peak dynamic factors are maded. The tot results were compared with the theoretical results. These thermality data and the transmitter of the transmitter of the transmitter and articular transmitter of the transmitter of the transmitter of the transmitter of the and articular production of the transmitter of the transmitter of the transmitter and mate transmitter of the transmitter of the transmitter of the transmitter and mate transmitter of the transmitter and mate transmitter of the t

Thomas and Peyrot [8] discussed the need to quantify the force time history after a conductor rupture. The objective was to capture the accurate peak dynamic load on the tower to ensure that the estimated load will provide a measure of the containment load that is needed to avoid a cassede fullier. Utili this time, the datap process was use trajectal impact factors: to estimate the buildmall bands on the tweer. The starburst developed a wave propagation model that is used in factors research and comparer modelling. A graph of the time battory of a dynamic response of combacter threads a double point with the second peak being the maximum tuninise experienced in the line starbur of as 1 bits point manner of the starburst starburst starburst starburst research with the accound be the distinct the time thereases the double tuninism rate across the high relevance subscrease the frame adaption of the starburst rate of the point where new showers the frame adaption and the 700 Expected that the frame paint is the recoil of the insulator avoing. The accound peak executed when the endution of accound the starburst starburst and the 700 Expected that the frame paint is the measure of the insulator avoing. The accound peak executed when the endustion down. The audient starburst adaption of the 2014 Expected theory atimatics a dynamic response. They verified that insulations results with Ferry-Brouges until tool away [24].

Richardson (9) and a 122<sup>th</sup> state model of a state joke proton consisting of cheven spars to every our breakmen conductive times and to measure the dynamic shade on the pole measure. Richardson frond that the use of more flexible structures will minimize the maximum dynamic load of the year mark compared to rigid attractures. In addition it was identified that where a break occurs at the monthesis of the dynamic load intervent without when a break occurs at the monthesis dynamic response velocity in scenario at the stars high dynamic response concent when a longer that we are high dynamic that the star high dynamic response concent when a longer minimum was the to a higher galloping affect of the conductor. From the testing it was found that longer insulators and stiffer structures contributed to a higher peak load.

McDare and Tiansi [10] performed backer conductor medianer dynamic analyses of a small scale model of a transmission line section using ADDA and composed the sumschedung fram this align with the experimental results reported by Mourer et al. [1]. They prepared that the higher frameway components of the response from the numerical results must be filtered in order to athiver manicul athibity. The authors explained the importance of accounting for antimumities in the arrange and conductors. They also identified the need to properly model the base of the insteamer. How did not conduct damping however the results showed a strong correlation between the simulated energies of the structure.

#### 2.3 Significant Work from 1990 - Present

During the past twenty years, the research work has primarily focused on the numerical modeling of transmission line system with particular reference to predicting the peak dynamic loads on the structure after a component failure

Jamaleddine et al [11] conducted a series of laboratory tests on two span reducedscale setup representing two level equal spans anchored at the end points and supported in the middle by institute rating. They similated ice-shedding bash by sakkedy dropping dard weights from the conductors. They also and ADDMto develop married and do to obtain the mits d-paramic response of the line model. The numerical results were compared with the experimental data. The numerical results for tansions were similar to the measured values but peak dramits trainance were lighter than the experimental data.

Grapts of 2122 anticle on a dotable analysis of a real life encode follow of  $\theta\theta$ towers of a M3My transmission line that eccored on Match 7, 1990 due to a tower is a stars. The ice stemp prodoced an ice fidences between 125-15 index accompanied by an average wind speed of 12.3 mph. The authors used the FLA (finite Element Analysis) software ETADS to simulate the nonlinear analysis.

Orandorp [13] developed a searcaffic failure risk assessment method to spicially and accurately determine enterest event unbalanced loads acting on a transmission line and schortly ascarding protential of a line. The method developed incorporates the dynamic response and damping tharacteristics of transmission line to determine the unbalanced longitudinal loads at any instance area from studiased and action out the for structures from the initiality reveal.

29

Kempser [14] conducted small scale model (1/23 scale) tests to understand the influence of the tower failures on the longitudinal load in a simulated cascading aitantion. The influence of tower type, conductor type, span length initial conductor tension and insulator lengths on longitudinal cascading failure were stabilist.

For and Mechane [13] and/of the dynamic effects of loce-holding on a transmission lines using a sumerical model. They modeled a two sput line each no to data mate and dynamic effects of its cloudding using ADPA software. A total of twenty one loc-sholding scenarios were studied; varying lor thicknesses, pass longite, clouding differences, number of elements per line, presence of userup upware and pertiti for sholding.

Peabody and McChare [16] discussed use of cascade prevention devices to limit the dynamic foreces on tangent suspension towers after an initial failure in the cable tensioning system. They have reviewed the development and use of load limiters for transmission towers

McChare and Lapointe [17] discussed three types of analysis techniques to simulate the behavior of transmission lines. These were described as, (i) static behavior under ice loading, (ii) quanti-static behavior under wind loading and (iii) dynamic/transiont behavior – due to sudden failure of component or shedding of the co. Dumping wars modeled uning viscous dampers in ADDAC. The damping ratios of 2% for hare cables/conductors and 0% for icol cables/conductors were used. The authors compared the results from 2-D and 3-D analyses. It is noted that when a 3-D anadeling system is used "...it is seen that the first and second peak tensions in the three dimensional model are delayed with respect to the twodimensional model and also have a longer duration."

Tacker and Haldar [1] carried out a semivity analysis of a line model to simulate the broken immaker failure test that was conducted on a full scale test testimismismic line. A material model was descepted using the AURA subware to simulate the broken immaker test conducted by Peprot et al [5]. The numerical results were compared to the test data and the correlation of the plot was 0.97%. The results showed that the variation in the immaker length did not influence the peak symmetrized.

#### 2.4 Summary of Previous Work

Much research has been underdame over the Lat 60 years to advance the design and analysis of transmission distributions systems. It started with static analysis, advanced tests and flack-ass which then progressed to linear educit factoble steel poles and now using 3-D non-finance analysis using Finite Emersten Software programs such as PLS-CADD, PLS-POLE, TOWER, ANNYS and ADINA. The accentras of response analyses using these programs in improving. The simulation statistics to date, how considered a small tumber of simulations without consistency between studies. There is a need for a single large scale study of key design parameters with consistent simulation methods to add to the current knowledge base.
### 3.0 VALIDATION OF MATHEMATICAL MODEL USING ADINA

In 1975, The University of Wissonshi and the Electric Power Research Institute (IPRI) carried out a series of full-scale breken conductor and brokm institute (IPRI) and to an access of full-scale breken conductor and brokm institute ware performed to advance the state of the ant at that time and to verify the containment load prediction techniques in line design, and to validate constrained merical andskill. (Densus, [11] an advantative abloratory scale model or fullscale tenting. The report (EL-2005) is one of the first that provides a very comprehensive set of full acade tori data and results complete tenting.

In the present multiple Weicomins the time was cheenen to validitate the numerical model. The prefile of the text line is shown in Figure 3.1. Sits intent spraw were included in the modeling with all streaments using aquare based limites need towers, each tower carrying two three phase circuits, each circuit strang with different conductor types, and non-orthoda shifd where, such tower. The data on the conductor attachment points were used in modeling the tower. The data on the conductor attachment points were used in modeling the tower. The data of the conductor attachment points were used a given in Ref [5]. The line angle of the ariginal text line between Tower 14 and 16 was and considered in the way. have significant effects on the results. Anchor ground points for the conductors

were chosen to be at fifty meters (50 m) from the two end towers.





### 3.1 Modeling in ADINA

The general ordine for tunniet response analysis in ADDA requires the decolupment of a finite chemistry (F); model of the line followed by a static runs to some that the initial sonis of the cable geometry under gravity load (cdff weight) was captured. A restinc tocks on the ang and the tension provides the hashs for assuming that the model is correct with respect to initial tunion, milding (G) and modeling sevenhead lines using ADDAA is given in CEATI report na. Tol3700-3310A (2000) and in Tacker (2007). The following provides the highlight of the procedure that was used in the present analy a checking an ADDAA model.

- The conductor and the shield wire are modeled as truss elements with initial pretension.
- The conductor material can be modeled as elastic (final modulus) or non linear elastic (initial modulus).
- > The tower is modeled as a linear elastic beam element with appropriate equivalent stiffness. For a "stick" model however, if the model includes the full tower then three dimensional trans elements are normally used.
- > The load is defined as mass proportional.
- > The static model is run first; the result is saved and used as the restart condition for the transient dynamic analysis.
- > Direct explicit integration technique is used to solve the equations of motion. The time step is less than a critical time step, which depends on the smallest element size and material properties. The time step can be

specified by the user or calculated automatically by ADINA. It was found that time step is less than 1 E-04 second in all cases.

The static model part is initialized at 1.0 second and the cable "death" element (element removed from the model to simulate a broken conductor) is activated at 1.001 second to simulate the conductor break.

Once the static analysis is completed, the transitient response analysis is carried out by invoking the "chement dush" option in ADDKA which allows the simulation of a solution prior at any aboution. When the element dush option in towel, the program does not add the associated chement mass matrix, stiffness matrix and load vectors to the system matrices for all solution times larger than the time of dash of the element, e<sub>max</sub>. For datals refer to the ADDKA manual (Stection 10.4, mass 933-642).

When the cable ciercust "disc", the insulator at the break point, as well as insulators in the other spans, in free to avoing fails. A step by step first the insulators in the equations of motion of the discrete system provides the history responses of various parameters and an displacement, conductor tension, force in the insulator aring, etc. ADDNA does not provide the insulator aring directly but this can be compated using the two displacement component (y- and z-) at the two all between does of the insulator entent. The size of the output file from a typical dynamic analysis run is very large. The output file (Purt file in ADRA) can be saved at specific time intervals to reduce the size of the file. The post processing of the output file provides the time hintory plots of element forces, notal displacements, stresses and strains in the element, etc.

### 3.2 Static Test Results (Tower only)

The tower responses  $e_{\mu}$ , member forces due to static loads applied at the right lower arm (R1 in Figure 3.2) is Y and Z directions and the loads applied at the top of the tower (T in Figure 3.2) in Y direction were analyzed. Table 3.1 compares the predicted responses with those reported in Ref [5] and the rouths are in good agreement.

### 3.3 Natural Frequencies and Mode Shapes of the Tower

Free vibration analysis of the tower was carried out to obtain the natural Brogenetics and mode shapes. The natural frequencies obtained from the analysis are given in Table 3.2. The first five mode shapes along with their frequencies are shown in Figures 3.3 and 3.4. The damped natural frequency of the tower in the longitudinal direction (heading mode) was reported as 4 H first Ref (51). The manetical value of 4.62 Hz obtained in the present work, compares well with the test result reported in

Ref [5] with an error margin of 15%.

# Table 3.1 Analytical Static Test Results

# (Values in brackets are from Ref[5])

		Т	5	1
		Y	Y	Z
	X	-404.8	-428.4	39.13
		(-403)	(-414)	(41)
	B1 Y	-254.6	-101.01	19.70
		(-251)	(-91)	(+17)
	Z	-2439.03	-1609.27	-92.52
		(-2367)	(-1516)	(-78)
	X	398.61	63.6	-41.58
		(403)	(82)	(-41)
	B2 Y	-247.03	-403.18	99.85
		(-251)	(-412)	(100)
	Z	-2403.08	-1443.36	592.5
		(-2367)	(-1467)	(578)
Reactions	X	-398.87	-64.36	-39.13
(Kgf)		(-403)	(-82)	(-41)
	B3 Y	-246.8	-403.09	-97.40
		(-251)	(-412)	(-100)
	Z	2403.08	1443.36	578.53
		(2369)	(1467)	(578)
	X	405.57	429.1	41.58
		(403)	(414)	(41)
	B4 Y	-251.5	-92.718	17.25
		(-251)	(-89)	(17)
	Z	2439.03	1609.27	-78.53
		(2367)	(1516)	(-78)
	1.1	2315.27	1366.2	163.8
		(2284)	(1328)	(151)
Forces in	1.2	2288.00	1239.0	-594.48
Base Members		(2284)	(1269)	(-588)
	1.3	-2287.61	-1238.0	-583.12
		(-2284)	(+1269)	(+588)
	1.4	-2319.6	-1379.1	152.45
		(-2284)	(+1328)	(151)
Deflection at Load		1.91238	0.96099	0.49257
points	(cm)	(1.902)	(0.9732)	(+0.4961)

Mode		Natural
number	Frequency (Hz)	Frequency(rad/sec)
1	4.5308E+00	2.8468E+01
2	4.6273E+00	2.9074E+01
3	7.9666E+00	5.0055E+01
4	1.1643E+01	7.3158E+01
5	1.1851E+01	7.4462E+01
6	2.0888E+01	1.3125E+02
7	2.1139E+01	1.3282E+02
8	2.2140E+01	1.3911E+02
9	2.4515E+01	1.5403E+02
10	2.4953E+01	1.5679E+02
11	2.7319E+01	1.7165E+02
12	2.9265E+01	1.8388E+02
13	3.1998E+01	2.0105E+02
14	3.2597E+01	2.0481E+02
15	3.4440E+01	2.1639E+02
16	3.5876E+01	2.2541E+02
17	3.7023E+01	2.3262E+02
18	4.0400E+01	2.5384E+02
19	4.5543E+01	2.8616E+02
20	4.8160E+01	3.0260E+02

# Table 3.2 Tower Natural Frequencies



### Figure 3.3 First Bending Mode (4.5308 Hz)



Figure 3.4 Second Bending Mode (4.6273 Hz)

#### 3.4 Natural Frequencies and Mode Shapes of the Test Line

The numerical models of the tower along with the transmission line are shown in Figures 3.5 and 3.6. Free vibration analysis of the text line was conducted to obtain the natural frequencies and the mode shapes. The initial tensions reported in Ref [5] were used to model the conductors and the shield wires. The natural frequencies of the tast line are presented in Table 3.3. The first twenty into (29) frequencies are due to swaying mode of the conductors (transverse displacement due of the conductor, 20M pt to vibration modes corresponding to the have modes correlated displacement model participants in the transmitting the modes are denotemer replanes. These modes are identified by examining the mode shapes. The frequencies presented in ball lattices correspond to conductor's how modes. These modes hapes are presented in Taper 3.7. The standard frequencies associated with hower modes are within the expected means.

Mode Number	Frequency (rad/sec)	Natural Frequency (Hz)
1	3.247E-02	2.040E-01
2	3.260E-02	2.048E-01
3	3.285E-02	2.064E-01
4	3.599E-02	2.261E-01
5	3.898E-02	2.449E-01
6	4.270E-02	2.683E-01
7	6.496E-02	4.081E-01
8	6.522E-02	4.098E-0
9	6.572E-02	4.129E-0
10	7.201E-02	4.525E-0
11	7.798E-02	4.900E-01
12	8.543E-02	5.367E-0
13	9.742E-02	6.121E-0
14	9.777E-02	6.143E-0
15	9.857E-02	6.193E-0
16	1.080E-01	6.786E-0
17	1.169E-01	7.345E-0
18	1.281E-01	8.046E-0
19	1.2998-01	8.161E-0
20	1.302E-01	8.183E-0
21	1.314E-01	8.257E-0
22	1.440E-01	9.047E-0
23	1.557E-01	9.785E-0
24	1.631E-01	1.025E+0
25	1.636E-01	1.028E+0
26	1.650E-01	1.037E+0
27	1.706E-01	1.072E+0
28	1.808E-01	1.136E+0
29	1.957E-01	1.229E+0
30	1,983E-01	1.246E+0
31	1.988E-01	1.249E+0
32"	2.008E-01	1.262E+0
33	2.011E-01	1.263E+0
34	2.011E-01	1.264E+0
35	2.033E-01	1.277E+0
36	2.045E-01	1.285E+0
37	2.058E-01	1.293E+0
38	2.096E-01	1.317E+0
39	2.134E-01	1.341E+0
40	2.143E-01	1.347E+0

# Table 3.3 Natural frequencies of the test transmission line





Figure 3.5 EPRI Wisconsin test line model close up view between two towers











### 3.5 Broken Conductor Tests Sequence

Full scale tests [8] on the test line were conducted in a particular sequence. The video of the full scale tests also confirmed the test sequence. The sequence is as follows.

L Free vibration of tower

II. Broken Insulator tests

R.1 Right side, lower phase

R.2 Right side, middle phase

L.1 Left side, lower phase

L.2 Left side, middle phase

III Broken Conductor tests

R.1 Right side, lower phase

R.1.a (Conductor slipped through clamp)

R.2 Right side, middle phase

R.3 Right side, upper phase (arm broke)

R.4 Right side, OHGW

L.1 Left side, lower phase

L.2 Left side, middle phase

L.3 Left side, upper phase

IV Broken Insulator tests (Longer insulator lengths)

R.1 through L.2 same as in II above

V Broken conductor tests (Longer Insulator lengths)

VI Sever all cables between G1 and T2.

In this study, the numerical analyses were carried out corresponding to test numbers IIIR1 through IIIL3.

# 3.6 Methodology-Static and Dynamic Analyses

### 3.6.1 Initial Static Analysis.

A static analysis is first carried out using mans propertical backing. The mass properticual backing is defined as the gravity lands artiget on the elements. Once the static analysis with mans properiods allouding is completed, the line try system will be in static equilibrium. The tunning predicted from the ADNN model run was close to the initial conductor tunion used in generating the say profile. The predicted frace is the initial conductor tunion used in generating the say profile. The conductor for a first initial conductor tunion of the site of the analysis within the conductor for a full space. The ADDNA substance areas the static analysis results in a file along with a creater splent for framework in a full full constance for each of the site of the static analysis, static and the static analysis. Restart data from the static analysis is static and the last areas analysis. Restart data from the static analysis is static and the last areas conductors.

#### 3.6.2 Dynamic Analysis and Simulation of Conductor Break

The dynamic analysis is carried out using the restart option. Before starting the dynamic analysis, some of the system parameters can be changed in the data input fine singluration data and the cross sectional properties, data denomic sec. The line changed. The break in the conductor is simulated by invaluing the 'death denome' option in ADNA. The reparate in the element is initiated at line 1001 sec: The domain analysis one performed using exploit dense indexed.

### 3.6.3 Simulation of Ice Load on the Conductors

Simulation of the load on the conductor is show by charajing the domby for the conductors. After the hiridit attain analysis is completed, the conductor's mass admity in molified to simulate the wight of the random law. The denoment mass matrices and conductor books are excluded with the modified runs. A neuron the original cross sectional areas of the conductors. A record static analysis is performed to obtain the new static equilibrium of the line system with randial terms of the section of the section of the section of the section of the protone equilibrium condition obtained under here conductors construct. With this restart analysis, is due and market the number of the section of the two the effect of the two backs. After the completion of the state analysis have been been been constrained by the section of the state analysis and the infinite left on the conductor of the section of the state analysis and the infinite or state analysis, is due to equilate the completion of the state analysis is and the section of the state analysis and the state form the state analysis. After the completion of the state analysis and the iso the effect of the two backs. After, the completion of the state analysis and the iso back performance of the section of the state analysis and the state form the state form the state of the section of the state analysis and the state form the state form the section of the state analysis. a total of two seconds. The first one second information refers to bare conductor while the last one second provides information under 25 mm radial ice load. Subsequently, the dynamic analysis is carried out with a death element option to simulate the break in the conductor under ice loading.

#### 3.6.4 Static Analysis to Estimate Residual Static Load

To entimate the static resolutal load under a stundy state confliction, two approaches are used, in the first approache, the dynamic analysis is carried out with increased and the properties to sensue that a stundy state confliction is reached quickly. The objective here is not to estimate the peak dynamic load rather the study state resolutal load and therefore the increased ampling properties will only here to obscitch the titte quicklysman.

In the second approach, a static analysis is carried out by simulating the conductor reptore with a static load approximately equal to the conductor tension applied at the bottem node of the issualance where the conductor was attached (See Figure 2.3). This is necessary to avoid mannerical isstability in the analysis due to the pin conservitiv of the issualance the tweer

The load equivalent to the conductor tension is applied in the opposite direction of the swing of the insulator. Using a load function that drops gradually from full tension to zero value, the static analysis is performed (See Figure 3.9). This procedure gives the final static equilibrium configuration of the line system after the conductor break is simulated. It was found in this study that the both methods give identical results with respect to static residual forces.



Figure 3.8 Insulator swinging direction after the conductor rupture



Figure 3.9 Variation of Load for Residual Analysis

#### 3.7 Broken Conductor Analysis (EPRI Wisconsin tests).

Conductor rupture in the span next to the left anchor in Figure 3.1 (span 2 Test No. IIIR1 to IIII.3) was simulated by invoking the death element option in ADBNA. The transient and steakly state analyses were carried out to obthin the peak dynamic and residual forces in the imulators and members of the tower 73. The row-fixed emb birdiness of imulator testing at sweet 75 for the test IIIR1 and III.1, II.2 and III.3 are presented in Figures 3.10 to 3.14 respectively. These figures also compare the numerical results with those data obtained from the full scale tests. From these figures, it can be seen that the numerical results obtained from this study compare well with those obtained from the full scale tests.

Table 34 presents the comparison of conductor training typical and residually as well as the log memotive fraces from tweer T3 with those definited from the full studie to the log memotive fraces from the [15] that pipels to the conductor regularce, the strint gauges at all stores resultions were initiation and therefore, the period. Secons regular does not include the effects of the initial compressive fraces in the members due to do and labelast. However, in the DNDAN model, the doubt load effect is assummitiatily included in the full coupler results. Accordingly, the initial semantically included in the full coupler results. Accordingly, the initial semantic further due to exclude uses and strend them the measurement parts for even to a weight due to the semantical model compare well in most cases with these results abstrated from the Str.



Figure 3.10 Insulator Tension Time History for the Test Case IIIR1



Figure 3.11 Insulator Tension Time History for the Test Case IIIL1



Figure 3.12 Insulator Tension Time History for the Test Case IIIL2



Figure 3.13 Insulator Tension Time History for the Test Case IIIL3

	Initial	Finl			
		Residual	Residual		
		Conductor	Conductor	Peak Forces	Peak Forces
	Initial	tension (N) as	tension (N)	(N) as	(N)
	Conductor	reported in Ref	(Present	reported in	(Present
Test Number	Tension (N)	(5 and 8)	study)	Ref (5 and 8)	study)
III.R.1	18639	10987	11054	31883	39440
III.R.2	19130	10987	11151	34727	3543
III.R.3			12257		43300
III.L.1	12459	7063	7112	20307	23425
III.I.2	17756	8731	8520	24623	31265
III.L.3	21288	9320	9323	24623	33700
IIIR1Leg1				34826	4809
IIIR1Leg2				40123	4474
IIIR1Leg3				40888	44362
IIIR1Leg4				52248	4855
IIIR2Leg1				38612	58500
IIIR2Leg2				51493	5322
IIIR2Leg3				53003	5251
IIIR2Leg4				58301	5925:
IIIL1Leg1				16657	2659
IIII.1Leg2				28017	32564
IIIL1Leg3				27262	3246
IIIL1Leg4				25741	2685
IIII.2Leg1				35581	4329
IIII.2leg2				36334	5514
IIIL2log3				33315	48624
IIII.2log4				44675	4872
IIIL3Leg1				62843	66900
IIIL3/eg2				74203	6814
IIIL3/eg3				65109	7159
IIII.3lea4			-	74958	63226

# Table 3.4 Broken conductor tests - Force exerted on Tower T3 Comparison

### 3.8 Conclusion

This chapter presented the numerical model developed for the Wisconin text transmission line. The numerical analysis provided time histories of conductor and insulator tension, member foreces in the tower, nodal displacements etc. It can be concluded from the results that a reasonable comparison was obtained with those obtained during the text.

### 4.0 MODELING

The main objective of this section is to present the various structural models and the properties that were used in developing the line models.

### 4.1 Structure Modeling

In order to determine the peak dynamic and the static residual longitudinal forces that act on the structure due to sudden conductor rupture, the transmission line models were developed using four different structure types. The following structure types are considered in modeling the transmission lines;

- Self-supported steel lattice tower for which the design drawings were acquired from Manitoba Hydro.
- Guyed-V steel lattice tower for which the design drawings were acquired from Newfoundland & Labrador Hydro (NLH), Nalcor Energy
- H-frame wood pole structure Type A, suspension structure-design was done by NLH, Nalcor Energy
- Steel tubular pole structure design details obtained from Bonneville Power Administration (BPA)

#### 4.1.1 Self-supported Steel Lattice Tower

The self-supported steel linitie tower damping were supplied by Mathibb Hydro for a single circuit 230 KV structure. The tower was designed for a spin of 214m to provide the adapted respond character under usin chandlik if characteristic supported steel lattice tower was booken into five components that made up the basic tower configuration. Two sets of Eqc extension (2048 nm and 9144 nms) are available to develop different tower brights an required by the soor. The limit, spin for these extensions is 230 nm of rem (with real mall is):

The main structural components are: lower lower body, support turns body, support arm and cross arm as shown in Figure 4.1. Each tower component was firm modela in Aust-CAD using a local combinitor system. The origin was always taken as the centrifies of the lower must plane. Modeling each component in Aust-CAD made is possible to extract the information on mold ormations, chemotic connectivity and the molsest's accion properties. A person was written in plane acriegy which appended the above informations to generate the information connectivity and the molsest's accion properties. A person was written in plane acriegy which appended the above informations to generate the function component in a form of the term of the ADNA directly. Sections 4.2 and 4.3 persons the finite chement models for different components. The busic toware an assumbled, the source with 3948ma larg extension and the toware with 9446ma locatectemises and above to Figure 4.4.

59







Figure 4.2 Various components of self-supported steel lattice tower



Figure 4.3 Self-supported steel lattice tower's leg extensions



### Figure 4.4 Fully configured self-supported steel lattice tower

#### 4.1.2 Guyed-V Steel Lattice Tower

The Gryok-V steel lattice tower doingn densings were provided by Newfoundland and Labudor Hydro (NLH) for a 2340.V supposing mixture. The tower was designed for a span of 425m, to provide the adequate ground clearance under a 25mm malial loc load. The tower considered for this analysis consists of the basic tower bedy with room extension (see Grant 46.6).

The basic Guyed-V steel lattice tower is broken into three main components; cross arm, upper mark, and bottom mast as shown in Figure 4.5. To increase the tower height, the mast extensions can be used. These must extensions can be ideal in various combinations between the upper and lower mast sections to obtain the required tower height. The maximum height can be up to 27.5m (90 feet) (a maximum mast extension of 12.19m (40 feet). The limit span for these extensions is 428 m under 25 mm radial ice

The Gapoth Yangi Inteine tower modeling was done following the methodology used in the case of self-supported atted lattice tower (neft to previous section for diffigure). The modeling of the main composetion (hower mast, upper mast and the mast extensions in Figure 4.6 sever done by generating the mang geometric model in AUTOCAD. The model conditance, element the first first



Figure 4.6 Various components of the guved-V steel lattice tower



Figure 4.7 Fully configured guyed-V steel lattice towers

### 4.1.3 Pseudo-elements

Self apported atecl lattice soure and apport24 trued lattice turners were modeld using three dimensional trave elements. In these towers, the stratick leg members are at ordina continuous and are baread at each panel beet. These members resist source bending moments and ideally should be modeled with beam elements. However, the modeling of these members using trave elements will not care a singlicent inscervers; the monoble fixees. This was validated and enfore for the Waccomis net fine. However, at certain panel (disphragm at the baciontal place) location, the traue dement members may not be connected in all three directions is a node point (lowage the horizontal place) means and any displice source of the site of t pseudo-element or dummy element having cross sectional area of 1 mm<sup>2</sup> was placed in order to form a truss that will make the model numerically stable.

4.1.4 H-frame Wood Pole Structure

A special fiftheme wood pole structure was doigned for a limit span of CBm to support 25mm (one inst) milial ice load. However, the structure bright was not suggest to provide structure grant and the set of the limit. Therefore, the span was limited to 214m is provide the adequate granted demance: under 214m (one individe limit, The details of the delayant granted demance: under 214m (bardner 194m). The shearing of the Horizon wood pole structure is given in Figure 43. The pole diameter at the base is 0.44 meter and 0.24 meter at the top with a limit type of 0.0009 min. The structured data for other components are given in the Table 4.

Cross arm	Cross brace	Knee brace
Length = 13.71 m		
Depth = 0.1524 m	Depth = 0.1397 m	Depth = 0.12 m
Width = 0.26 m	Width = 0.1397 m	Width = 0.078 m
E = 13237.91 MPa	E = 12410.5 MPa	E = 13237.9 MPa
Weight= 4560.168 N	Weight = 110.93 N/m	Weight = 88.783 N/m

Table 4.1 Structural Data for the components of H-frame wood pole structure

66

H-frame wood pole structure in Figure 4.8 was modeled using three dimensional beam elements. Each pole is divided into fiftnen (15) beam elements. Since the cross section is varying across the height of the pole structure, the average diameter based on the diameters at the ends of each element is used to model the cross sectional area of the beam element.





4.1.5 Steel Tubular Pole Structure

The steel tubular pole structure drawings were supplied by BPA. The schematic of the steel tubular pole structure is given in Figure 4.9. The typical pole height is 30.48m (100 foot). The pole structure was suitable for a limit span of 214 m to support 25mm (one inch) radial ice load and to provide adequate ground clearance. The cross section is a regular twelve face polygonal type. At the base, the dimension across the flats is 0.80m (31.38inches and the plate thickness is 7.14mm (0.28 inches). The pole has a taper of 0.016 m/m (0.19 in/ft.) The plate thickness is 7.14mm that is constant from the base to a height of 19.8m (65 foot). The remaining of the pole section has a plate thickness of 4.76 mm (0.19 inches). The three arms of length 3.31 m are inclined upward with a 3° angle from the horizontal. The arm cross section is hollow irregular hexagon (elliptical) (see figure 4.10) with a plate thickness of 6.35 mm. Steel tubular pole structure was also modeled using the methodology as outlined in Section 4.1.4. Each pole is divided into a number of beam elements. Since the cross section is polygonal, the element section properties (area, moment of inertia, torsional constant) were calculated using the average pole dimensions between the two consecutive nodes. The cross arm was also modeled as beam elements taking into account the irregular share. Three beam elements were used to model the cross arm with appropriate section properties.


Farure 4.9 Steel tubular pole structure



Figure 4.10 Cross section details of the arm

## 4.2 Transmission Line Modeling

The three distinct terrain types with 31 spans were considered as follows (data provided by NLH, Nalcor Energy)

- 1. Flat terrain
- 2. Hilly terrain
- 3. Valley terrain

The conductors straing between the towers were modeled using three dimensional trans elements with initial main enversponding to the initial conductor tension. The model co-conduction is the conductor model are generated using the conductors of end points of the conductor in each of the span. Since the conductors and gay wires were modeled an assembly of humismody three down and the linear matterial models was noted. Les the models of educities juit zeros of the axial atrain is compressive and models of educity in prescribed only when axial strain in positive. A just a single was written to a generate the input file data manufacily in a fortune required for ADNA setworks.

The following input data was required to generate the data for transmission line model:

- Conductor prosperities area of cross section, weight density per unit length, modulus of elasticity and initial conductor tension.
- ii) The foundation co-ordinates of each the tower location with respect to the first tower i.e. x co-ordinate along the transverse direction of the line, y co-ordinate along the longitudinal direction of the line, and z co-ordinate, describing the tower foundation

elevation, conductor attachment point with insulator co-ordinates with respect to the origin of the tower co-ordinate system and the insulator string length.

Data file that contains nodal point coordinates, line/element connectivity information, element cross sectional properties, weight density and modulus of elasticity.

The transmission lines were modeled using 31 tower structures. For the billy termin, the 16<sup>40</sup> structure was placed on the top of the bill while structure to 1 and 31 are located at the out of the line respective. The same slope was used to model the hilly and the valley termins. The slope was 18 m increase in height over each span length of 474.42m or 49 m increase in height over each span length of 214.21. This was the concrete for the valley termin. A section of the model for each of the terminer are how in Figures 41.10 + 0.3 J

Tower type	Basic suppo steel la tow	self rted rtice er	Se suppo steel li tower 3048 lep exten	If eted attice with mm g sion	Sel suppo steel la tower 9144 lep exten	If etcd mtice with mm g sion	H-frame wood pole structure		Steel tubular pole structure		ar Guyed-V steel lattice tower	
Insulator String Length (m)	214	21	428	.42	428	42	428	42	214	21	428	42
Insulator String Length (m)	2.12	3.1	2.12	3.1	2.12	3.1	2.12	3.1	2.12	3.1	2.12	3.1
Initial tension (% of RTS)	15%; 29	20%;	15%; 25	20%; %	15%c 25	30%; %	15%; 25	20%; %	15%; 25	209%; %	15%; 259	20%;

# Table 4.2. Configuration for transmission line models for any terrain



# Figure 4.11 Level terrain



Figure 4.12 Hilly terrain



Figure 4.13 Valley terrain

Figures 4.14 to 4.17 present the line models in ADINA with self-supported steel lattice tower, guved-V steel lattice tower, the steel tubular pole structure and H-



Figure 4.14 Section of the line with guyed-V steel lattice tower



Figure 4.15 Section of the line with steel tubular pole structure





#### 5.0 FREE VIBRATION ANALYSIS AND DAMPING

The first spin is a smusless dynamic analysis using other implicit or expellenintegration procedure is to centante the appropriate damping promoters. In the attraction analysis of a streamstinism fine due to conductor traptare, are tools to are different damping values for the conductor (a flexible system) and be inverse of non-Bohlby systems. Appliciph damping is used, and ADNA substrue can proceeding values for different donous groups. In this shapter free vibration analysis is presented to provide longituding flexibilities for the smusters and the in-genter depresent of the first excitor.

## 5.1 Free Vibration Analysis of Towers

For emdeding free vibration analysis, a lamped mass model was used. The longitudinal bending modes of the supporting structures are important for the supporting structures, these longitudinal bending modes were identified. The longitudinal mode shapes for various structure types are shown its Figures 5.1 to 5.6. Is govered, the for longitudinal bending modes were sidentified. The based of the structure of the structure of the supervised with the first natural frequency in all cases. The natural frequencies for all supporting metatrum are given in Tables 5.1 to 5.6. The longitudinal bending frequencies are shown in our list free which.



Figure 5.1Longitudinal bending mode of basic self-supported steel lattice tower

Frequency (rads/Sec)	Frequency (Hz)	Period (Seconds)	Mode Shape
22.19	3.531	0.2832	1
23.47*	3.736	0.2677	2
44.1	7.018	0.1425	3

	1	 Sec. 1	- 16		
14046-5.1		r maxoc y			met

Iongitudinal bending mode



Figure 5.2 Longitudinal bending mode for self-supported steel lattice tower with

## 3048 mm leg extension

Table 5.2 Natural frequencies for self-supported steel lattice tower with 3048 mm

# leg extension

Frequency (rads/Sec)	Frequency (Hz)	Period (Seconds)	Mode Shape
20.67	3.29	0.304	1
21.67*	3.448	0.29	2
43.68	6.952	0.1439	3

longitudinal bending mode



Figure 5.3 Longitudinal bending mode for self-supported steel lattice tower with

9144 mm leg extension

Table 5.3 Natural frequencies for self-supported lattice tower with 9144 mm leg

extension

Frequency (rads/s)	Frequency (Hz)	Period (seconds)	Mode
18.4	2.929	0.3414	1
19.07*	3.034	0.3296	2
40.18	6.395	0.1564	3

\* longitudinal bending mode



Figure 5.4 Longitudinal bending mode for guyed V steel lattice tower with 10.67 m (35 Foot Extension)

# Table 5.4 Natural frequencies for guyed V steel lattice tower with 10.67 m (35

# Foot Extension)

Frequency (rads/s)	Frequency (Hz)	Period (seconds)	Mode
1.29E+01	2.06E+00	4.86E-01	1
1.43E+01	2.27E+00	4.41E-01	2
3.20E+01	5.09E+00	1.96E-01	3

80



Figure 5.5 Longitudinal bending mode for steel tubular pole structure

Table 5.5 Natural	frequencies for steel tubular p	pole structure
-------------------	---------------------------------	----------------

Frequency (rads/s)	Frequency (Hz)	Period (seconds)	Mode
5.71E+00	9.09E-01	1.10E+00	1
5.73E+00	9.11E-01	1.10E+00	2
5.25E+01	8.35E+00	1.20E-01	3



Figure 5.6 Longitudinal bending mode for H-frame wood pole structure

Table 5.6 Natural frequencies for H-frame	wood p	ale structure
---	--------	---------------

Frequency (rads/s)	Frequency (Hz)	Period (seconds)	Mode
3.37E+00	5.36E-01	1.87E+00	1
6.91E+00	1.10E+00	9.09E-01	2
1.22E+01	1.95E+00	5.14E-01	3

# 5.2 Free Vibration Analysis of Transmission Line

The frequency analyses were carried out for a section of transmission line modeled with the input data given in Table 5.7. The relevant frequencies and the mode shapes were identified for further dynamic analyses. The frequency values for the three initial tensions considered are given in Table 5.8

In the analysis, it was noted that the natural frequency of the line depends only on the initial conductor tension and span length. The frequency was not dependent on other line turameters such as structure type, invultate length and the terrain type.

				Ter	rain					
Tower Type	Basis supp steel too	self- orted lattice wer	Se suppo steel I tower 3048 exter	if- orted lattice r with 8 leg tsion	Se supp sta tov wi 9144 k exter	H- rel ice ver ith mm g zsion	H-frame wood pole structure		Steel tubular pole structure	
Span (m)	214	1.21	428	1.42	428	.42	214	.21	2	14.21
Insulator String Length (m)	2.12	3.1	2.12	3.1	2.12	3.1	2.12	3.1	2.12	3.1
Initial tension (% of RTS)	15; 2	0; 25	15; 2	0; 25	15; 2	0; 25	15; 2	0;25	15;	; 20; 25

Table 5.7. Input data for transmission line models for a given terrain

### Table 5.8 Transmission line frequencies

Spans length	Initial tension (% RTS)	Frequency ω (rads/s)		
	15	0.26		
428.42 m	20	0.38		
	25	0.49		
214.21 m	15	0.88		
	20	1.17		
	25	1.41		

#### 5.3 Damping Matrix

For a transient dynamic analysis, the damping matrix [C] is required. To construct the damping matrix, Rayleigh damping coefficients are used in conjunction with the mass and stiffness matrices. The damping matrix is given by

$$[C] = \alpha [M] + \beta [K]$$
 (5.1)

Where  $\alpha$  and  $\beta$  are Rayleigh damping coefficients, [M] and [K] are total system mass and stiffness matrices.

The critical damping ratio  $\omega_i$  for mode, i, is given in terms of Raleigh damping coefficients as

$$\xi_i = \frac{\alpha}{2\omega} + \frac{\beta \omega_i}{2}$$

(5.2)

Where 64, is natural frequency of the system in i<sup>th</sup> mode of vibration

In the present analysis, a damping matrix proportional to mass matrix is used which means that  $\beta$  is equal to zero. As a result we can calculate  $\alpha$  as follows. The matrix has only diagonal elements.

$$\alpha = 250$$
, (5.3)

A damping ratio  $\xi = 0.02$  for conductor and a damping ratio  $\xi = 0.1$  for tower were used with the natural frequencies of these two element groups to construct the damping matrix. Rayleigh damping coefficients for all tower types are given in Table 5.9 and for conductors are given in Table 5.10.

Structure Type	Frequency, eo (Rads/s) YZ Mode	Rayleigh Constant $\alpha$ $(\xi = 0.1)$
Self-supported steel lattice tower	23.47	4.69
Self-supported steel lattice tower with 3048mm leg extension	21.67	4.33
Self-supported steel lattice tower with 9144mm leg extension	19.09	3.82
Guyed V steel lattice tower	14.25	2.85
Steel tubular pole structure	5.727	1.15
H-frame wood pole structure	3.367	0.67

Table 5.9 Rayleigh damping constant @ for supporting structures

Table 5.10 - Summary of conductor damping coefficients

Spans length	Initial tension (% RTS)	Freqency, es (rads/s)	Rayleigh Constant a (ξ =0.02)
	15	0.26	0.0104
428.42 m	20	0.38	0.0151
	25	0.49	0.0195
214.21 m	15	0.88	0.0353
	20	1.17	0.0469
	25	1.41	0.0565

#### 6.0 STATIC AND DYNAMIC ANALYSIS

Using the procedure as outfield in Section 3.6, static and dynamic analyses were careful on the 2004 / orchend lines modeled with fur types of matchers. These incurrent types are (12) deformpoint and million tower (2) OnyeV steel altive tower (2) Steel tubular gole structure and (4) H-damo wood pole structure. The printury objective is to analy the effect of structural flexibility on the dynamic pole and static residual conductor turnions in the span next to the break. The defined of the analyses presented in this chapter,

#### 6.1 The Effect of Structural Flexibility on Residual Conductor Tension

EPH (and) (12) has shown that also a conductor reption, the magnitude of the train emission factors as structures any firm the follow zone can be estimated band on the initial conductor ransion, longitudinal hard factor for the structure, correction factors for space/mailane ranks and the structured ficebility, longitudinal Lard Factor (L12) is defined as a function of the response coefficient and quarkage ratio. The response coefficient is determined from set results. The Spars/mailance correction Factor ( $T_{\rm SV}$ ) is defined as ( $T_{\rm SV}$ ) = ( $T_{\rm SV}$ ), shown is the sparse market of the structure of the structure longitudine coefficient is determined to the structure of longitudine coefficients of the structure of the the during and prediction of cache different to tree within. The flexibility correction factor is defined as the ratio of the residual conductor tension for a flexible structure (e.g.  $N^6$  structure) to the residual tension for a rigid structure. In the EPRI report, this flexibility correction factor for  $N^6$  structure is computed based on an empirical formula and given as

 $C = e^{-\left(\frac{(UR_n)}{200}\right)}$ 

(6.1)

where

C = Structural flexibility correction factor for N<sup>th</sup> structure

1/ka - Structural flexibility of N<sup>th</sup> structure in m/kN

The structure's stiffness was obtained by applying a unit load at the center of the cross arm. Table 6.1 presents the data for all four structure types.

Structure type	Stiffness (kN/m)	Span (m)
Self supported Lattice Tower( basic tower)	785.90	214.12
Lattice self supported tower with 3048 mm leg extensions	685.89	428.42
Lattice self supported tower with 9144 mm leg extensions	548.35	428.42
Guved-V tower	251.68	428.42
Steel Pole structure	28.54	214.21
Wood pole H-Frame structure	17.03	214.21

Table 6.1 Stiffness and flexibility values for support structures

Figure 6.1 presents the correction factor plot for a wide range of structural flexibility values given in Ref.[13]. The figure was modified to accommodate the flexibility value up to 0.15 mkN. A reference correction factor of 1.0 is used for a rigid structure and a factor of 0.7 refers to a very flexible structure.

The IPER undoy suggested that for a self-supported heavy maple tower or a doal and steel tower, the values could range from 5.7 to 34.246.63 (mAN). For a selfseported lattice tangent tower, rejusied throfoldilly values can maple between 33.21-63 to 63.52.64 (mAN) while for a 116-mem wood palse or a steel pole structure; this value could range from 646.63 to (mAN) 542.16.05 respectively. Table 6.2 potents the fitnability data for the structures can be in the analysis and compares these values with those suggested in the 12983 study [13]. It appears that both the Gogod-V and self-supported steel lattice towers are considerably stiffer (databatic) compared to the states suggested in the 12982 study [13]. It appears that which the fit officence in tower design. The fits/hilly properties for the steel table pole structure and the 14 fittine wood pole structure are reasonable whole compared to the values suggested in the former(13).



Figure 6.1 Correction factor versus structural flexibility values (Ref [13],

### modified)

Table 6.2 Comparison of flexibility	values -between the structures used in this
study and the values	suggested in the EPRI report

Structure Types	Flexibility	Flexibility value used in this study	
	Upper Value	Lower Value	(10 <sup>-3</sup> m/kN)
Tangent (Self supported) or Guyed-V	68	34	1.27 to 3.9
Tangent steel pole or wood pole structures	342	68	35 to 58

In this section, a transmission line modeled with H-frame wood pole structures is used to study the effect of structural flexibility on the residual conductor tension. In the analysis, the following two cases are considered:

- CASE A large displacement analysis for both conductor and structure (flexible).
- CASE B large displacement analysis for the conductor and small displacement analysis for the structure (stiff).

To similar the variations in survanil flexibity, Yonny's mobil of the structural wood members (jedse, enso-sum eits) were changed. The line model around a span of 214.21 m with an initial conductor turnion of 20% KTS (Rind Tamilis Brough). A line model with a span of 24.82m wanta is used to milly the span effect on the flexibility correction factor. The conductor represe was similarial for the span on the structure number 16. The numerical results for the above true cases andiad are given in Table 6-3 and are compared with the tange system is the JCH Target or Spacent the compared results the structure system is the JCH Target or Spacent the compared members the.





The correction factors for the two cases are presented by the following empirical

equations.

For CASE A 
$$C = e^{-6000/4}$$

For CASE B  $C = e^{-0.002/4}$ 

(6.3)

For CASE A with 428m span,  $C = e^{-0.0074}$ 

(6.4)

Cohile of a Planethilling second on Parkensi	

		Initia	al conducto	r tension 20%	RTS				
	Large displacement analysis - Case A (Span 214.21 m)		displacement Large displac sis - Case A analysis - Co n 214.21 m) (Span 428.4		Small displacement analysis - Case B (Span 214.21 m)		Large displacement Small displacement R analysis - Case A analysis - Case B ( (Span 428.42 m) (Span 214.21 m)		Reference correction factor
Flexibility (m%N)	Residual load (kN)	Correction factor	Residual load (kN)	Correction factor	Residual load (kN)	Correction factor	EXP(- (10))		
0	12.67	1.00	20.18	1.00	12.67	1.00	1.00		
0.01	12.06	0.95	19.54	0.97	12.07	0.95	0.99		
0.01	11.51	0.91	18.92	0.94	11.54	0.91	0.99		
0.06	9.15	0.72	15.92	0.79	9.55	0.75	0.95		
0.12	7.83	0.62	14.20	0.70	8.77	0.69	0.90		
0.18	7.09	0.56	13.44	0.67	8.38	0.65	0.86		



Figure 6.3 Flexibility correction factors (modified after [13])

# 6.2 The Effect of Structural Flexibility on Dynamic Peak Conductor Tension

Dynamic initiation analysis were carried out on two groups of transmission lines. Each group consists of three separate lines. Each line has one specific structure type. These activations types are (1) definition lines: tower with 3048mm log extensions (2) Solf-supported stocl lattice tower with 9114am log extensions and (3) dogsk-V attact lines: tower. The first groups has a typical rano of 24m and how to sume quowing and the speciminalizer attact.

The second group also consists of three structure types; (1) Self-supported steel lattice tower (basic tower height), (2) Steel tubular pole structure and (3) II-frame wood pole structure. All these lines have also equal spans of 214m and the same span' sag and the span'invaluate ratios.

#### 6.2.1 Simulation Results for Group 1

Figure 6.4 presents a typical time history plot for the conductor tension in a line modeled with self-supported steel lattice tower. From the figure it can be seen that the maximum peak dynamic force is 50.03 kN



Figure 6.4 Time history of conductor tension (Self-supported steel lattice tower

with 3048mm leg extensions)

Figure 6.5 presents a typical time history plot for the conductor tension in a line modeled with self-supported steel lattice tower with 9114mm leg extensions. From the figure it can be seen that the maximum dynamic peak force is 49.13 kN.



Figure 6.5 Time history of conductor tension (Self-supported steel lattice tower with 9144 runn leg extensions)

Figure 6.6 presents a typical time history plot for the conductor tension in a line modeled with Guyed-V steel lattice tower. From the figure it can be seen that the maximum peak force is 46.87 kN.



Figure 6.6 Time history of conductor tension (Guyed-V steel lattice tower)

## 6.2.2 Simulation Results for Group 2

Figure 6.7 presents a typical time history plot for the conductor tension in a line modeled with self-supported steel lattice tower (basic tower type). From the figure it can be seen that the maximum peak force is 39.44 kN





tower)

Figure 6.8 presents a typical time history plot for the conductor tension in a line modeled with steel tubular pole structure. From the figure it can be seen that the maximum peak force is 27.14 kN



Figure 6.8 Time history of conductor tension (Steel tubular pole structure)

Figure 6.9 presents a typical time history plot for the conductor tension in a line modeled with the H-frame wood pole structure. From the figure it can be seen that the maximum peak force is 44.0 kN.



Figure 6.9 Time history of conductor tension (H-frame wood pole structure)

Group 1						
Structure type	Stiffness (kNim)	Maximum peak force (kN)	Residual load (kN)			
Lattice self-supported tower with 3048 mm leg extension	685.89	50.03	20.17			
Lattice self-supported tower with 9144 mm leg extension	548.35	49.17	20.10			
Guyed-V tower	251.68	45.87	19.84			

#### Table 6.4 Peak and residual conductor tensions for Group 1 (span/sag =32)

Table 6.5 Peak and residual conductor tensions for Group 2 (span/sag =65)

Ga	oup 2			
Structure type	Stiffness (kNim)	Maximum peak force (kN)	Residual load (kN)	
Lattice self-supported basic tower	785.9	39.44	12.60	
Steel tubular pole structure	28.517	27.15	10.26	
H-frame wooden pole structure	17.028	44.00	9.14	

- i) From the examination of the above results, it is observed that for lines models and ange goap 1 with root types of addi-supported structures, the maximum peed dynamic conselector tension is invariant to the steeless atfillions values, (*Tippers* 64, 65, 5). However for the grayed V steel lattice tower, there is a 10% reduction in the peak force because the payor/V steel lattice sover has a considerable lower stifflions value commends to the three transmitter transmitters.
- ii) For lines modeled under group 2, it is seen that the steel tubular pole structure is subjected to a reduced dynamic peak load when compared to the basic rigid structure type. However for some unknown reasons, this was not observed for the H-finame wooden pole structure although both these structures are fitchild semutators (Refer to Table 6.1). For

these two types of flexible structures, it is believed that the structure's layout and mass have an impact on the peak dynamic force in addition to the structural flexibility values and therefore, a separate study was carried out to understand this issue

- iii) The computed residual loads on all structure types are affected by the flexibility values. This is in line with the EPRI study results and the other past studies.
- 6.2.3 The Effect of the H-frame Cross Arm Mass on Dynamic Peak Conductor Tension

In order to mind, the effect of the cross are mass on the goal dynamic tension, a inter modeled with the H-dame wooden pole structure is considered. The dynamic study is use conducted for two specifics cases: (1) the original mass of the cross arm and (2) the robused mass for the cross are. The reduction of the cross are mass was achieved by changing the density value while keeping the same stiffness property. The dynamic peak conducts transion obtained in both cases are shown in Table 6.6.

		Wood pole with original cross arm mass Peak dynamic conductor tension (kN)			Wood pole with reduced cross arr mass Peak dynamic conductor tension (kN)		
Insulator Length	RTS	Left Phase	Middle Phase	Right Phase	Left Phase	Middle Phase	Right Phase
2+12 m	15.00	24.07	26.84	24.07	16.49	23.20	16.49
	20.00	26.52	44.88	26.53	18.54	31.24	18.23
	25.00	34.11	53.83	34.11	20.19	36.88	20.19
3.1 m	15.00	21.19	27.36	21.95	17.39	23.95	20.19
	20.00	20.75	36.70	20.75	16.33	24.16	16.32
	25.00	30.70	47.92	29.45	24.01	37.78	24.01

#### Table 6.6 The Effect of cross arm mass on peak conductor tension

### 6.3 Impact Factors

Dynamic simulations studies were carried out using the line parameters as presented in Table 6.7. For each case, two insulator string lengths (2.12 m and 3.1 m) were used. The impact factors as proposed by Gorsen 141, the mixed maximum transient longitudinal factors to the initial conductor tunnion (ITI), and the ratio of maximum transient longitudinal factors to the residual conductor tunnion (ITI) are used to present the dynamic simulation results. The residual ratio (IRI3) defined as the ratio of residual factors to the initial conductor tunnion was also used to present the study with the imitation results.

From the simulation results, these factors were calculated and presented against the non-dimensional parameters as defined below

k' = Tower Stiffness/weight of the conductor per unit length Span sag ratio= Length of span/sag

Supporting structure's stiffness's and sags corresponding to the initial conductor tension are given in the Table 6.7. All these calculations are done for two span/insulator ratios.

Figures 6.10 and 6.11 show the variation of residual ratio (RD) for transmission line models with sparsing ratio for different tower types. From these figures it is inferred that residual ratio decreases with increasing approximation. The residual ratio is also higher for stiff structures when compared to more flexible structures. Residual ratio increases with increase in provimitation length. Figures 6.12 and 6.13 show the variation of impact factor (IPT) for transmission face models with spanning ratio for different tweet types. From these figures it is informed that (IPT increases) with increasing quanting ratio for more flexible increase in spanning ratio. For stiff structures, the does not appear that the quanting ratio does resulty affect the IFT values. However the sem impact faster (IPT) increases with the does in the quantum ratio.

Tower	Stiffness	Stiffness/conductor	Span		Sag (m)	
Type	(kN/m)	weight/unit length	(m)	15% RTS	20% RTS	25% RTS
Wood Pole Structure	17 028	1066.25				
Steel Pole Structure	28.517	1785.66	214.47	4.406	3.304	2.603
Lattice self supported basic tower	785.9	49248.65				
V-Guyed Tower	251.68	15759.55				
Lattice self supported basic tower 9144 extension	548.35	34336.26	428.93	17.654	13.227	10.577
Lattice self supported basic tower 3048 extension	685.89	42948.65				

Table 6.7 Characteristics of transmission line models







Figure 6.10 Variation of RR with Span'sag (214.47 m)







Figure 6.11 Variation of RR with Span/sag (Span 428.95 m)






Figure 6.12 Variation of IFF with Span/sag (214.47 m)









#### 6.4 Conclusions

From the freepoing andly, is can be infitted that the structural flexibility, sparsifulation ratios and the sparsing at risk have considerable effects on the related constant turning increase the instantian fracty. The peak symmits turnion decreases an the support structure flexibility increases however this is directly directed by the cross arm mass and the abage of the structures used for time modeling. As the cross arm mass in reduced for flexibility structures, or does the pool dynamic lask. For stiff structures, cross arm mass has very linit effects on the reduct conduct wrotes.

For transmission lines modeled with rigid structures, the impact factors are not sensitive to the stiffness values, whereas for lines modeled with flexible structures, (like wood pole and steel tubular pole type structures) the residual ratio (RR) depends on both the stiffness values and span/instation and span/ing ratios.

#### 7.0 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

A munitivity andly was careid on thy waying the design parameters that affect the peak and residual endoctors tunions. These parameters we initial conducts: minomi (19%, 30% and 25% (ETX)), endocers loading thus conducts, endual ice loads anceitant with half an intro at our inch to thistenses respectively) and three different types of termin (locet, hilly and valicy turnint). The simulations net marks for a typical line model with one particular type of supporting structure is given in Table 2.1. This table prevides a number of simulations for each conductor confines, how conducts, in loads due to half international and one minimality in the structure type, a line model engines 54 simulations to run the semilivity analysis. For all line models considering the semitrivity of the parameters selected, a toolf mode of 334 simulations are models.

Terrain Insulator Ienzth	Supporting structure type																	
	Level				Hilly					Valley								
	2.12 m			3.1 m		2.12 m		3.1 m		2.12 m		3.1 m		1				
Initial conductor tension (% of RTS)	15	20	25	15	29	25	15	8	25	15	20	25	13	29	25	18	20	25

Table 7.1	Simulation test mate	ix for a typical	line with a partic	ular supporting
	structure for a	particular cond	ductor condition	

From the simulation results, the impact factors IFI (ratio of peak dynamic force to initial conductor tension). IFF (ratio of peak dynamic force to residual tension) and RR (ratio of the residual tension to the initial conductor tension) were calculated and presented in the form of graphs in Figures 7-1 to 7-12.

The IFI, RR ratios were obtained using the bare conductor initial tension for all conductor conditions i.e. bare conductor, half inch radial ice thickness and one inch radial Ice thickness.

The IFF ratios were calculated using the appropriate residual tension. For example, IFF for one inch radial ice load condition was calculated as the ratio of peak dynamic conductor tension to the residual conductor tension for one inch radial ice load.

Figures 7-1 and 7-3 show the variation of IPL Figures 7-5 and 7-3 show the variation of IPP and Figures 7-9 and 7-11 show the variation of IPR with k<sup>2</sup> for even obtained and the state of the state

Similarly, Figures 7-2 and 7-4 show the variation of IFI, Figures 7-6 to 7-8 show the variation of IFF and Figures 7-10 to 7-12 show the variation of RR with k' for three different terrain conditions and three initial loading for transmission line models with 31 spans of equal span lengths of 214m and insulator lengths of 2.12

m and 3.1m.



## Hilly





Valley













Valley

Hilb





Valley

Hills







LT2D-







# Hilly



Level

Valley









Valley

Hills



Figure 7.6 Variation IFF vs. k' (Insulator length 2.12m; Span 214m)





Hilly









Valley

Hilb









Valley

Hilb









LTD.









Hilly









Valley

Hilly





From these figures the following points are observed.

- a) There is no appreciable effect of insulator string length on the IFI ratios.
- b) The impact factor IFI decreases as initial conductor tension is increased.
- c) The impact factor IFI is not affected appreciably by the type of tower support used in the transmission line model. The IFI ratios are also not influenced by the terrain type modeled with stiff towers (guyed-V steel lattice towers, self-supported steel lattice towers).
- d) The transmission type descrit significantly influence the impact factors for transmission fine module that severe considered in this matrylst. It should be noted that and transmission fine in modeled with one type of transmis and one type of supporting atteature. From the parameters used in the semicirity mady, the important design variables that affect the impact factors are initial moderator transm.

Since the impact factors are not affected by terrain type, the average values of impact factors for transmission line that were modeled using different types of supporting structures are presented in the tables 7-2 and 7-3.

From these tables it can seen that for transmission lines modeled using stiff structures, there is no appreciable effect of type of structure on the impact factors. The impact factors are primarily affected by the initial conductor tension and the type of loading on the conductor (ture versus loaded). As the initial conductor tension increases, the impact factors decreases. The effect of insulator length has more effect on residual ratio thun peak impact factors.

For line models that were generated using flexible structures, the structure type and the stiffness have more influence on both peak impact factors and residual ratios.

Incodebor Ionath	RTS %	Supporting structure type	K'	Ba	e condi	actor (	Hall	linch ice	kod.	one inch ice load		
				171	100	117	121	1 8.21	177	121	1.00	L III
		Solf-supported steel lattice tower with 304firm key extension	42948.6837	2.14	0.89	2.41	3.25	1.53	2.12	2.50	1.0	2.29
	15	Self-supported steel lattice tarner with 91 Humiley extension	34336,2555	2.07	0.75	2.50	2.98	1.35	2.21	2.37	0.96	2.53
		<b>Gepud-V sheel lettice tower</b>	13334.55	1.92	0.87	2.21	2.91	1.49	1.95	2.25	1.08	2.12
	-		-	_	_	-	_	-	_	_	-	-
		kroer with 30 Bren kg	42948.6837	1.71	0.71	2.40	2.63	1.22	2.18	2.05	0.88	2.36
2.12m	20	Self-supported steel lattice tower with 91Huma key extension	34036.2555	1.79	0.71	2.41	2.52	1.21	2.05	1.96	0.88	2.29
			15758.55	1.66	0.30	2.38	2.59	1.19	2.02	1.92	0.55	
		Self-supported steel lattice kover with 30 Binn leg entersize	42948.6537	1.61	0.87	2.46	2.64	1.11	2.39	3.84	1.15	2.30
	25	Self-rapported steel lattice tower with 9344mm leg extension	34336.2595	1.71	0.55	2.56	2.54	1.39	2.31	3.78	1.73	2.35
		Gayed-V steel lattice tower	15759.55	1.50		2.50		1.87	2.09	3,48		
	_		_	_		_	_	_		-	_	_
		Sell's apported steel lating hower with 3008mm log entersion	42948.6537	2.32	0.78	2.99	3.43	1.36	2.52	4.67	2.32	2.62
	13	ScK-supported steel lattice tower with 934kmm leg	34036.2593	2.39	0.71	3.17	3.34	1.25	2.66	4.69	2.12	2.12
		Gayed-Visteel lattice tower			0.78		3.34	1.43			2.16	1.99
		Salf-supported sheet lattice towar with 2048mm log	42948.6537	1.90	0.65	2.91	1.89	0.96	2.89	4.04	2.65	1.95
3.1m	20	Self-supported steel lattice tower with 9344am leg entersize	34336-2353	1.91	0.65	2.90	1.90	0.65	2.91	4.00	1.84	2.21
		Oxyed-V steel lattice tensor	19799.55	1.56	0.00		1.75	0.65	2.69		1.99	1.99
		Self-supported steel lattice toxer with 2040am leg	42948.6537	1.64	6.61	2.71	2.57	1.02	2.56	2.57	1.62	2.56
	28	Self-supported ateel lattice tower with 9144mm log	34336.2555	1.64	0.60	2.71	2,41	1.01	2.37	2,41	1.01	2.37
			117303-010	1.00	2.61	2.42	2.14	6.97	12.500	2.14	0.82	1.20

# Table 7.2 Average impact factors for line models with stiff structures (Span Length 428.m)

Insolutor Leveth	RIS	Tower Type		Bar	e cond	actor .	Half	inch in	r kond	one inch ice load			
				1123	IK K	11.5.	1121	<b>KK</b>	IPP/	11/1	KK	11/2	
		Basic steel lattice tower	49211	1.65	0.50	3.29	3.01	0.86	3.49	2.10	0.63	3.34	
	15	Steel tubular Pole Mrschare	1785.66	1.10	0.43	2.54	1.36	0.70	1.95	1.20	0.52	2.37	
		H-frame wood pole couctore	1066.25	1.31	0.39	3.35	2.25	0.62	3.61	1.62	0.47	3.40	
		Hasic steel lattice	49211	1.42	0.45	3.17	2.43	0.74	3.30	1.77	0.55	3.21	
2.12m	20	Sheel tabular Pole skracture	1785.66	0.94	0.36	2.60	1.14	0.57	2.01	1.02	0.43	2.4	
		H-frame wood pole structure	1066.25	1.40	0.32	4.34	1.95	0.50	3.89	1.61	0.38	4.23	
		Basic steel lattice kower	49211	1.27	0.42	3.05	2.04	0.65	3.16	2.97	0.99	3.00	
	25	Steel tabalar Pole structure	1783.00	0.69	0.32	2.17	1.07	0.48	2.23	1.28	0.71	1/29	
		H-frame wood pole structure	1066.25	1.45	0.28	5.25	1.49	0.42	3.55	2.19	0.62	3.90	
		Danie steel lattice hittor	49211	1.56	0.44	3.57	2.66	0.76	3.50	4.15	1.26	3.90	
	15	Stord tabalar Polo situatare	1785.66	1.46	0.42	3.41	2.62	0.71	2.78	2.73	1.13	2.34	
		H-frame wood pole structure	1066.25	1.54	0.39	3.84	3.15	0.65	4.95	4.07	1.04	4.0	
		Bask steel lattice	49211	1.32	0.38	3.47	1.32	0.38	3.45	3.47	1.03	3.38	
3.1m	29	Soci tabalar Pole	1783.00	1.10	0.35	3.05	1.16	0.37	3.10	2.40	0.91	2.54	
		H-frome wood pole structure	1066.25	1.32	0.33	4.06	1.36	0.34	4.06	4.07	0.83	5.10	
	-	Doale steel lattice 52627	49211	1.15	0.33	3.33	1.90	0.56	3.40	1.90	0.56	3.46	
	25	Siscel tabular Pole	1783.66	0.97	0.32	2.94	1.39	0,50	2.71	1.39	0.50	2.71	
		H-frame wood	1065.25	1.51	0.29	5.26	1.58	0.45	3.51	1.98	0.45	3.51	

Table 7.3 Average impact factors for line models with flexible structures (Span Length 214m)

## 8.0 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

The effects of structure type (soff supported lattice twore, (soft-shafe) and the structure and 18-finance social policy are structure, insultance to the structure, insultance the structure, insultance the structure shafe the structure shafe in the structure shafe the structure shafe the structure shafe and structure shafe a

The structure" fichability and approximation tangih ratios have a combinedness critics on the residual conductor tamion, where an peak insulator dynamic tamion is affected not only by the approximage structure. For still structures, the must have used in the type of supporting structure. For still structures, the isologith new its approximation by the must be the system as compared to still structures. Therefore the peak dynamic londs decrease as flexibility increases. In additions and the amount of anovel energy in the system increases due to be independent with the function there they do dynamic longers are the higher cross areas must in should be to increase of a peak dynamic longer in structures. It is structure as a structure must be increased on to be independent on the structure of a peak dynamic force increases. The higher cross areas must in should be to fixed on the structure longers and the independent of the system because it is located above the energy of any struclated experiment by the system because it is located above the content of gravity of the structure of the system because it is located above the content of gravity of the structure. For transmission lines modeled with stiff supporting structures, the impact factors do not vary much by the varying the support structure stiffness, whereas for lines modeled with flexible structures, like the 11-finane, wood pole structure and steel tubular pole structures, the residual force in the conductor depends on both stiffness and spentimulate string length and sparing radius.

# The following conclusions are arrived from this research

- a) There is no appreciable effect of insulator string length on IFI factor The impact factor IFI decreases as initial stringing tension increases
- b) The impact factor IFI is not affected appreciably by the type of tower support used in the transmission line model or the type of terrain selected with stiff towers viz., Gayed-V steel lattice tower, self-supported steel lattice towers.
- c) The termin type doesn't influence the impact factors very much for transmission line models that were considered in this analysis. It should be noted each transmission line model is modeled with one type of termin and one type of toware. The impact factors may be different if the termin a combination of different termin.
- d) From the parameters used for simulations in this study, the most important design variables that affect the impact factors are the

initial stringing tension with bare conductor on the transmission line and conductor condition.

- c) The effect of insulator string length has more effect of residual ratio than peak impact factors. For stiff line models generated using stiff structure there is no appreciable effect of type of structure on the impact factors. As the initial conductor tension increases, the impact factors dorsenses.
- For line models that generated using flexible structures, the type of tower has more influence on both peak impact factors and residual ratio.
- g) The impact factors reduce as the span length decreases.

#### 9.0 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR FUTURE WORK

Based on this study, the following recommendations are given for future work.

- 1 Auto-causaling structure in the line. To date a study involving simulations has not been performed with a causade averstige tower in the middle or somewhere in the middle two bluels) of the transmission line model but rather all have been located at the ends. Lequading the knowledge in this area would be useful for decisers as well as transmission line mathetance.
- 2 Interphase spacem and their diffet on the damping of a dynamic response. A shady has never been performed in this area before and it would be of grant benefit to doingeness to better unbreaked their impact that inter-phase spacers pile/on on the pool. dynamic had of a transmission line and their use to damp out forces in a transmission line that are the result of conductor failure and/or component failure.
- 3 Steep grafe of termins. This study examined low grade slopes which appeared to be negligible in their affect on the response however stopes grades are thought to have a potential to gravily increase the dynamic force in a line and hence needs to be examined in future work. Varying the grades greater than 10% and useds 25% would be of me.

- 4 Different types of insulator strings. This study was narrow in that only two differing length insulators were used, however varying other parameters such as material type, connection point and type, and shape, would be of benefit.
- 5 Ice shedding on conductors. This needs to be explored further as research in this area to date is minimal but yet this is a very common phenomenon in industry.
- 6 Wind load and ice load on both towers and conductors. Research in these areas is increasing but exclusive of one another to date and hence has yet to provide the overall picture. Since this phenomena occurs simultaneously in many regions this needs to be studied in the future.

#### References

- Tucker, K. B. and Haldar, A. (2006) "Numerical Model Validation and Semitivity Study of a Transmission Line Insulator Failure Using Full Scale Test Data", IEEE Transactions on Power Delivery, vol. 22, No. 4, October 2007, 3439-2445.
- Haro, L., Magnusson, B. and Ponni, K., (1956) "Investigation of Forces Acting on A Support After Conductor Breakage", Paper No. 210, International Conference on Large Electric Systems (CIGRE), Paris, 15 pages.
- Lummis, J., Fiss, R.A., (1969) "Effect of Conductor Imbalance on Flexible Transmission Structures" IEEE Transactions on Power Apparatus and Systems, Vol. PAS-88, No. 11, November 1969, pp1672-1678.
- Govers, A., (1970) "On The Impact of Unidirectional Forces on High Voltage Towers Following Conductor Breakage", Paper No. 22-03, International Conference on Large Electric Systems, 10 pages.
- Peyrot, Alain H., Kluge, Robert O., and Lee, Jun W., (1978) "Longitudinal Loading Tests on a Transmission Line". EL-905. Sentember, 145 pages.

- Lindsey, K.E. (1978a). "Mathematical Theory of Longitudinally Loaded Elastic-Plastic transmission Lines-statics." IEEE Transactions on Power Apparatus and Systems, PAS-97(2), 574-582.
- Mozer, J. D., Wood, W. A. and Haribor, J. A., (1981) "Broken Wire Tests on a Model Transmission Line System", IEEE Transactions on Power Apparatus and Systems, PAS-100: pp. 938 – 947.
- Thomas, M. B., and Peyrot, A. H., (1982) "Dynamic Response of Ruptured Conductors in Transmission Lines", IEEE PES, Winter Meeting, pp. 1 - 5.
- Richardson, A.S. (1987) "Longitudinal Dynamic Loading of a Steel Pole Transmission Line" IEEE Transactions on Power delivery, PERD-2(2), 425-436.
- McChare, G. and Tinawi, R., (1987) "Mathematical Modeling of the Transient Response of Electric Transmission Lines Date to Conductor Breakage", Computers and Structures, Vol 26, No. 5, pp. 41-56.

- Jamaleddine, A., McClure, G., Roousselet, J., and Beauchemin, R. (1993). "Simulation of Ice Shedding on Electrical Transmission Lines Using ADINA." Computers and Structures, 47(4/5), 523-536.
- Gupta, S., Wipf, T.J., Fanous, F., Baenziger, M., and Hahm, Y.H. (1993) "Structural Failure Analysis of 345 kV Transmission." IEEE PES Summer Meeting, Vancouver, BC, Paper No. 93 SM 441-6 PWRD.
- Ostendoep, M. (1997a-d) Longitudinal Load and Cascading failure Risk Assessment (CASE) Volume 1: Simplified Approach. TR-107087-V1, Electric Power Research Institute, Palo Alto, CA.
- 14. Kempner, L. J., (1997) "Longitudinal Impact Loading on Electrical Transmission Line Towers: A Scale Model Study", PhD Thesis, System Science: Civil Engineering, Perland State University, Portland, Oregon, 201 pages.
- Fekr, M.R., McChare, G., (1998) "Numerical Modeling of the Dynamic response of Ice-shedding on Electrical Transmission Lines" Atmospheric Research, 46, 1998, 1-11.

- Peubody, A.B., and McClure, G., (2002) "Load Limiters for Overhead Lines", 4<sup>th</sup> Structural speciality conference of the Canadian Society for Civil Engineering, June 2002.
- McClure, G., and Lapointe, M. (2003) "Modeling the Structural Dynamic Response of Overhead Transmission Lines." Computers and Structures, 81, 825-834.

#### Bibliography

- Brown, R.S. (1913). "Stresses Produced in a Transmission Line by Breaking of a Conductor." Electrical world, March 29, 1913, 673-676.
- 2 Buchanan, W.B. (1934). "Vibration Analysis-Transmission Line Conductors." Transactions of the AIEE, 53, 1478-1485.
- 3 Bissiri, A., and Landau, M. (1947). "Broken Conductor effect on Sags in Suspension Spans." AIEE Transactions, 66, 1181-1188.
- 4 Elgerd, O. I. (1963) "Transient Suspension Forces caused by Broken Transmission Line Conductors," Journal of the Franklin Institute, 275(3), 227-245.
- 5 Bonar, P.P. (1968) " Dynamic Testing of Lattice Steel Masts." International Conference on Large High Tension electric Systems (CIGRE), Paris, Paper 22-04.
- 6 Campbell, D.B. (1970). "Unhalanced Tensions in Transmission Lines" Journal of the Structural Division, ASCE, 96(ST 10), 2189-2207.

- 7 Peyrot, A.H., and Goulois, A.M. (1978) "Analysis of Flexible Transmission Lines" Journal of the Structural Division, ASCE, 104(ST5), 763-779.
- 8 Themas, M. B., (1981) "Broken Conductor Loads on Transmission Line Structures", PhD Thesis, University of Wisconsin, Madison, 311 pages.
- 9 Siddiqui, F., and Fleming, J., (1984) "Broken Wire Analysis of a Transmission Line Systems", Computers and Structures, Vol 18, No. 6, pp. 1077-1085.
- 10 Anjam, R. (1991). Galloping and Broken Conductor Analysis of Transmission Lines, M.S. Thesis, Civil and Construction Engineering, Iowa State University, Ames, Iowa.
- 11 Gupta, S. (1991). Nonlinear Analysis of transmission Line Structures Subjected to Ice Leads, M.S. Thesis, Civil and Construction Engineering, Iowa State University, AMES, Iowa.
- 12 Roshan, Fekr, M. (1995). Dynamic Response of Overhead Transmission Lines to Ice Shedding, M.Eng. Thesis, Civil engineering and Applied mechanics, McGill University, Montreal, Quebec.

- 13 Commission 1998 Ice Storm. (1999a) Facing the Unforesecable, Lessons from the Ice storm of '98, Les Publications du Quebec, Quebec.
- 14 Commission 1998 Lee Storm. (1998). La Securite Civile (Public Safety): Rapport de la Commission Scientifique et Technique Chargee D'analyser les Evenements Relatifs a la Tempete de Verglas Survenue du 5 au 9 Janvier 1998, Les Publications du Quebee, Quebec.
- 15 Commission 1998 Joe Storm, (1999c) La Securite Civile (Public Safety): Rapport de la Commission Scientifique et Technique Chargee D'analyser les Evenements Relatifs a la Tempete de Verglas Survenue du 5 au 9 Janvier 1998, Les Publications du Quebee, Ouebee.
- 16 Commission 1998 Joe Storm, (1994). La Securite Civile (Public Safety): Rapport de la Commission Scientifique et Technique Chargee D'analyser les Evenements Relatifs a la Tempete de Verglas Sarvenne du 5 au 9 Janvier 1998, Les Publications du Quebec, Quebec.

- 17 Commission 1998 kee Storm. (1999e) La Securite Civile (Public Safery): Rapport de la Commission Scientifique et Technique Chargee D'analyser les Evenements Relatifis a la Tempete de Verglas Survenue da 5 au 9 Janvier 1998, Les Publications da Quebec, Quebec.
- 18 Fleming, J.F., Atkins, S.R., and Mozer, J.D. (1978) "A Program for Longitudinal Load Analysis of Electrical Transmission Lines." Computers and Structures. Sept. 1978, 237-253.
- 19 Peabedy, A.B. (2001). Transmission Line Longitudinal loads, A Review of design Philosophy, Structural engineering Series No. 2001-02, Department of Civil Engineering and Applied Mechanics, McGill University, Montreal.
- 20 Hm, SW, Cho, HGL, Wan, RC, Han, DJL, Lei, DJL, ohioi, LH, ahan, T.W., (2003) "Simulation on Interface mechanical Stress in Protocials Isolations for Transmission Earls by Control Growth Using ANSYSYNASTRAN Programs" Proceedings of the 7<sup>th</sup> International Conference on Properties and Application of Didectife Materials, Jane 15, 2003.

- 21 Lapointe, Marc, (2003) "Dynamic Analysis of Power Line Subjected to Longitudinal Loads", Master of Engineering Thesis, McGill University, Montreal, 105 pages.
- 22 ADINA (Automatic Dynamic Incremental Nonlinear Analysis), (2003). Version 8.6. ADINA R&D, Watertown, MA.
- 23 Munaswamy, K., Haldar, A., (2000) "Self-damping Measurements of Conductors with Circular and Trapezoidal Wires", IEEE Transactions on Power Delivery, Vol. 15, No. 2, April, pp 604-609.
- 24 Ferry-Borges, F. (1968) "Experimental Study of the Stresses Created by the Breakage of Conducctors in High-Voltage Lines" Department of Public Works, National Civil Engineering Laboratory, Lisbon, Portugal, November, 1968.






